
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Agenda
Board of Commissioners


September 22, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt an Amended Agreement between


Fayette County and the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension; and


authorization for the Chairman to execute the Amended Agreement.


2. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to approve the replacement of an ASCO


controller for an ATS (Automatic Transfer Switch) located at the Justice Center by


Yancey Power Systems in the amount of $5,358.87.


3. Consideration of staff’s recommendation for approval to transfer adopted budgeted


funds in the amount of $80,852 from the asphalt and mowing projects salary line items


to technical services within the Road Department budget.


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to approve an Automatic and Mutual Aid


Agreement between Fayette County and Clayton County Fire and Emergency


Services; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said Agreement.


5. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to amend the Overtime Budget for the


Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigations Division by $2,525.09 for reimbursement for


employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


6. Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on August 25,


2011 and September 7, 2011.


OLD BUSINESS:


7. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance No. 2011-08 authorizing


Fayette County to establish a Stormwater Utility that will be funded by user fees.


NEW BUSINESS:


8. Consideration to approve staff’s recommendation to award a contract for construction


of Veterans Parkway, Phase II, Section 2 (SPLOST Project No. R-5) to E. R. Snell


Contractor, Inc. in the amount of $3,405,810.75.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2  and 4  Thursday each month 7:00 pmnd th


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200


Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:administration@fayettecountyga.gov










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator


Consideration of adopting an amended agreement between Fayette County and the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension.


The County annually enters into an agreement with the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension for extension services programs 


including 4-H and agricultural services.  The current agreement stipulates the level of funding provided by Fayette County for certain 


positions including a prorated portion of health and life insurance benefits.  The UGA Cooperative Extension has undertaken a 


reorganization of the office to improve productivity and program delivery.  The proposed reorganization includes reducing the number of 


hours from 29 to 19.  In addition, UGA proposes as part of the reorganization to absorb all costs associated with health care and life 


insurance benefits.  The County currently provides benefit funding for 3 positions.  The net effect of this proposed reorganization and 


funding responsibility is a reduction in the County's funding obligation of approximately $2,534.00.


Authorization for the Chairman to sign the proposed amended agreement between Fayette County and UGA Cooperative Extension 


pending the County Attorney's review.  


None.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 22, 2011







Fayette County
Board of Commissioners


July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 Budget Year


Technical Services (UGA) 2012 Budget Inc/(Dec) Proposed 
Annual Salary
4-H Agent Position 12,000$        14,000$          26,000$        
ANR Agent 14,000          -                      14,000          
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 13,419          -                      13,419          
4-H Program Assistant -                    21,022            21,022          


39,419          35,022            74,441          
Annual Benefits (10.28%)
4-H Agent 1,234            1,439              2,673            
ANR Agent 1,440            -                      1,440            
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,350            29                   1,379            
4-H Program Assistant -                    2,161              2,161            


4,024            3,629              7,653            
Social Security
4-H Agent 918               1,071              1,989            
ANR Agent 1,071            -                      1,071            
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,027            -                      1,027            
4-H Program Assistant -                    1,608              1,608            


3,016            , 2,679              , 5,695            ,
Health Insurance
4-H Agent 3,404            (3,404)             -                    
ANR Agent 3,404            (3,404)             -                    
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 6,539            (6,539)             -                    


13,347          (13,347)           -                    
Life Insurance 
4-H Agent 19                 (19)                  -                    
ANR Agent 19                 (19)                  -                    
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 35                 (35)                  -                    


73                 (73)                  -                    


Technical Services (UGA Employees*) $59,879 $27,910 $87,789


Personnel Costs (County Employees**) $60,092 (30,444)$         $29,648


Total Costs for County Extension $119,971 (2,534)$        $117,437


Please note Contract and Grants.
Please send Fayette County BOC the final bill no later than 30 days from the contract of June 30th.


*UGA will disperse all payroll, tax and insurance payments for UGA employees and will bill Fayette 
County monthly for their actual contribution to the following address:
Mary Holland, Finance Director
140 Stonewall Avenue West
Fayetteville, GA   30214


** County employees are part-time with no benefits paid by Fayette County.









		Administration - Amended Agre...Extension - AgendaRequestFile.pdf

		Administration - Amended Agreement UGA Extension - Backup1

		Sheet1



		Administration - Amended Agreement UGA Extension - Backup2










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Building & Grounds Greg Ownby


Request the replacement of an ASCO controller for an ATS (Automatic Transfer Switch) located at the Justice Center.


During a thunderstorm on July 12, 2011, one of the six (6) ATS Controllers was damaged by lightning.  The damaged controller is not 


sending a signal to the Emergency Generator to start when LINE power is lost during a power outage.  This ATS controls the power for 


Court Rooms, Offices, Jury Rooms, and the Elevators. 


 


We were able to get bids from two vendors.  One from Yancey (who installed the controls) in the amount of $5,358.87, and the second 


from Emerson Network Power for $5,626.80.


Request approval for the replacement of the controller by Yancey Power Systems in the amount of $5,358.87.


This replacement was not budgeted and will be charged against the existing judicial non-departmental building services budget of 


$91,679. Staff may be required to request additional funding towards the end of fiscal year 2012. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 22, 2011







 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-305-5115                                              Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
 
 
 To:   Jack Krakeel 
 
 From:  Ted Burgess 
 
 Date:   September 7, 2011 
 


Subject: Replacement of ASCO controller for an Automatic Transfer Switch at the Justice 
Center 


 
 
On July 12, 2011 lightning damaged one of the six automatic transfer switch (ATS) controllers at 
the Justice Center.  The function of the ATS is to send a signal to the emergency generator when 
regular electric power is lost.  The damaged ATS controller serves the court rooms, jury rooms, 
judicial offices, and elevators. 
 
Quotes to repair the ATS controller were solicited from the two known vendors who do these 
repairs. Yancey Power was the lowest bidder, at $5,358.87 (please see the attached bid tally 
sheet). I concur with Gregs recommendation. 


 
 If any additional information is needed, please let me know. 
 
 
 TB/tc 
 
 Attachment 
 
 cc:  Greg Ownby 









		Building & Grounds- Justice Center ASCO Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Building & Grounds- Justice Center ASCO Backup1

		Building & Grounds- Justice Center ASCO Backup2

		Building & Grounds -Justice Center ASCO Backup3










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval to transfer adopted budgeted funds of $80,852 from the asphalt and mowing projects salary line items to technical services 


within the Road Department budget.   


The FY2012 budget for the road department approved two projects established within the salary line items for temporary help with 


asphalt and mowing for $40,426 each. The Road Department has been able to utilize workers through a temporary agency for this work.  


As a result, the budget associated needs to be transferred to the technical services line item in the Road Department budget.


Approval to transfer budget of $40,426 in asphalt and $40,426 in mowing salary line items to technical services in the Road Department 


budget for a total transfer of $80,852. 


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 22, 2011





		Finance - Asphalt and Mowing - AgendaRequestFile.pdf

		Fnance -  Asphalt and Mowing - Asphalt Salary - Backup1

		Finance - Asphalt and Mowing - Mowing Salary - Backup2










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Fire & Emergency Services is requesting approval to enter an “Automatic and Mutual Aid” Agreement with Clayton County Fire & 


Emergency Services.


Automatic aid provides additional resources to both departments in a predefined response area and mutual aid allows response in the 


remaining portion of the county in fire, EMS, and disaster situations.  This provides additional apparatus and personnel for quick 


response and high impact events. Both departments have resources that can respond and provide assistance to certain geographical 


areas prior to the arrival of the other agency. Aid agreements of this type are also beneficial to departments with ISO considerations for 


response. 


 


In April of 1991, the department entered into an automatic and mutual aid agreement with Clayton County.  Subsequently in 2004, this 


agreement was canceled by Clayton County due to issues that arose from within Clayton County and their municipal partners.  Under the 


current administration, departments external to Clayton County are being contacted and requested to consider reentering the automatic 


aid portion of this agreement. 


 


Entering into this updated agreement will provide Fayette County with access to these additional resources and aid in supplementing fire 


and EMS response strengths.  The department recommends updating this agreement to include both automatic and mutual aid. 


Approval of the Automatic and Mutual Aid Agreement with Clayton County Fire & Emergency Services and for the Chairman to sign the 


agreement pending the County Attorney's review.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 22, 2011

































		Fire & EMS - Mutual Aid Agreement Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Fire & EMS - Mutual Aid Agreement Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works - SPLOST Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract for construction of Veterans Parkway, Phase II, Section 2 (SPLOST Project No. 


R-5) to E.R. Snell Contractor, Inc., in the amount of $3,405,810.75.


The scope of this contract includes: traffic control, clearing and grubbing, erosion control, mass grading, rock excavation, fine grading, 


storm pipe installation, concrete work (curb and gutter), placement of graded aggregate base (GAB), temporary and permanent 


vegetation, guardrail installation and construction of a roundabout at Lees Mill Road.  The project is nearly all new road construction and 


is approximately 2.8 miles long.  The contract does not include asphalt paving (with the exception of roundabout construction), 


intersection work at SR 92, or construction of a new bridge over Whitewater Creek.   


 


The procurement process for this award consisted of two stages.  First, a Request for Qualifications was issued issued on July 26, 2011 


and nine Contractors were ultimately determined to be pre-qualified and invited to bid on the project.  Second, seven bids were received 


on September 14th and E.R. Snell was the low bid.  References were checked as part of the pre-qualification process.  The Contractor is 


pre-qualified by the GDOT and  all other aspects of their bid met the project specifications.  Additional justification for award of the 


contract is provided in the attached recommendation letter from Mallett Consulting, Inc. 


 


Note:  a portion of the bid amount is a function of the GDOT Asphalt Cement Price Index and therefore the actual unit prices for asphalt 


may be higher or lower, as pre-set in the bid, depending on the index value at time of paving.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract for construction of Veterans Parkway, Phase II, Section 2 to E.R. Snell 


Contractor, Inc., in the amount of $3,401490.75 ; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said contract pending review by the 


County Attorney.  


This is a transportation SPLOST project with sufficient funding available in account 321-40220-541210 R-5.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 22, 2011









		Public Works - Veterans Pkwy CST Award Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Public Works - Veterans Pkwy CST Award Back-up










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Acknowledgement of the Sheriff's Office intention to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division by $2,525.09 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Acknowledgement from the Board of Commissioners of the Sheriff's Office intention to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the 
Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $2,525.09 which has been received from various 
federal programs for the 2011-2012 Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $117,325.09.


N/A


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 22, 2011












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Stormwater Management Department Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance No. 2011-08 authorizing Fayette County to establish a stormwater utility that 


will be funded by user-fees.


Since 2003 staff have presented to the BOC the consistent increase of stormwater management responsibilities and various funding 


opportunities available.  Most pipes installed in Fayette County are corrugated metal pipe with an average life span of 25 years.  


Currently 40% of county subdivisions are over 25 years old. The level of stormwater management the county currently provides can no 


longer support the mounting maintenance and replacement needs of infrastructure and increasing state and federal unfunded regulatory 


mandates. 


 


 


Adoption of Ordinance No. 2011-08 authorizing Fayette County to establish a stormwater utility that will be funded by user-fees.


Staff is recommending a dedicated stormwater enterprise fund be established sourced from user-fees based on a fair and equitable rate 


methodology that associates demand placed on the system directly proportional to the user. 


Yes Since 2003


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, September 22, 2011







 


 
 


TO:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners  
 
FROM: Stormwater Management Department 
   
DATE: Sept 22, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Revised Stormwater Management Funding Recommendation 
 
The level of stormwater management the county currently provides can no longer support the 
mounting maintenance and replacement needs of infrastructure and increasing state and federal 
unfunded regulatory mandates.  Stormwater staff is recommending a dedicated stormwater 
enterprise fund be established sourced from user-fees based on a fair and equitable rate 
methodology that associates demand placed on the system directly proportional to the user.   


Attached is a proposed three-year operations plan and budget.  Work proposed under this plan 
encompasses: 


• conducting a full inventory and inspection of the stormwater infrastructure using current staff; 
• completing future-conditions floodplain mapping required by the Metropolitan North Georgia 


Water Planning District; and, 
• performing minor operations and maintenance beyond the current complaint-based level. 


Conducting a full inventory and inspection throughout the County will provide the necessary roadmap 
to detail the full financial exposure of necessary infrastructure repair and maintenance costs.  At 
completion of this process a Stormwater Master Plan outlining all critical stormwater improvement 
needs and a systematic operations and maintenance plan will be presented to the Board.  


The proposed user-fee rate $0.35 per 1,000 square feet can provide the dedicated funding needed to 
conduct the proposed work.  This translates to an annual fee of $25.20 for the average 6,400 square 
foot home in the County.   The user-fee rate is based on the amount of impervious area for each parcel.  
Impervious area is directly proportional to demand put on the stormwater management system and 
therefore is the most equitable for assigning service charges. An annual report will be submitted 
summarizing financial status and work accomplished for the period. 


Also attached is the credit manual referenced in the proposed Stormwater Utility ordinance.  This 
manual details policies, processes, technologies and credits available to property owners who 
implement stormwater best management practices.  The cumulative effect of these best management 
practices are intended to reduce demand and impact of the Stormwater Management Program, thereby, 
reducing the overall costs to protect the County’s most valuable natural resource. 







EXPENSE Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
ADMINISTRATION
Enterprise Functions (Legal, Financial, HR, etc.) 5.00% $33,195 / Year $33,195 $34,191 $35,217
Bill Preparation 1 $18,000 / Year $40,000 $18,540 $19,096


$73,195 $52,731 $54,313
ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE Rate Cost
Personnel / Overhead1


Stormwater Director (existing) $67,000 / Year 0.50 FTE $82,410 / Year $41,205 $42,029 $42,870
Environmental Programs Engineer  (existing) $65,000 / Year 1.00 FTE $79,950 / Year $79,950 $81,549 $83,180
Environmental Tech  (existing) $41,500 / Year 1.00 FTE $51,045 / Year $51,045 $52,066 $53,107
Environmental Tech  (existing) $44,000 / Year 1.00 FTE $54,120 / Year $54,120 $55,202 $56,306
Engineering Tech  (existing) $42,000 / Year 1.00 FTE $51,660 / Year $51,660 $52,693 $53,747


Operations
General Supplies $14,000 / Year $14,000 $14,280 $14,566
GIS Equip/Computers/Software $15,600 / Year $20,000 $2,400 $2,448
Public Outreach/ Compliance $10,000 / Year $3,000 $3,060 $3,121
Advertising $1,000 / Year $1,000 $1,020 $1,040
Communication Services $2,250 / Year $2,250 $2,295 $2,341


$318,230 $306,594 $312,726


Flood Plain Mapping $75,000 $85,000 $125,000
Operations and Maintenance $100,000 $150,000 $150,000


$175,000 $235,000 $275,000
$566,425 $594,325 $642,039


1- (estimated med insurance/retirement adjustments)
  Total Cost of Services


Fayette County Stormwater Management Program
Proposed 3 - Year Operations Plan


Subtotal


 Environmental Enforcement and Compliance  Subtotal


Administration Subtotal







Year 1 Year 2 Year 3


REVENUE
Stormwater Utility Revenue


Number of RERUs (A)1 158,071 159,651 161,248
Monthly Charge per RERU ($) (B) $0.35 $0.35 $0.35
Average Monthly Charge for 6,400 sq. ft. home2 $2.10 $2.10 $2.10
Yearly Charge for 6,400 sq. ft. home $25.20 $25.20 $25.20


YEARLY GROSS UTILITY REVENUE (A*B)*12 $663,897 $670,536 $677,241
Revenue Additions3 $0 $47,679 $73,599
Revenue Reductions4 ($66,390) ($67,054) ($67,724)
YEAR NET REVENUE FOR SWMP (C) $597,507 $651,161 $683,116
EXPENSES


Administration $73,195 $52,731 $54,313
Environmental Enforcement and Compliance $318,230 $306,594 $312,726
Operations & Maintenance $0 $0 $0
Direct Capital Outlay $175,000 $235,000 $275,000


YEAR EXPENSES (D) $566,425 $594,325 $642,039


YEAR-END FUND BALANCE = C-D $31,082 $56,836 $41,077


1 - RERU = Rounded Equivalent Residential Unit (Impervious area/1000 sq. ft.) and 1% increase in RERU per year for new impervious area
2 - Average Size Impervious area for a Single Family Residential Lot in Unincorporated Fayette County
2 - Year-End Fund Balance and Delinquency Collections (half of pervious year)
3 - 5% Delinquencies and 5% Credits


Fayette County Stormwater Management Program - Preliminary Rate Study







 


 


 
  


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 


Stormwater Management Department 


November 2011 







 


1 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION  


Stormwater Utility user fee credits are given to property owners for being good stewards of the 
natural water resources in Fayette County by performing stormwater best management practices 
(BMPs). The cumulative effect of these BMPs are intended to reduce demand/impact on the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Programs, improve water quality, reduce flooding, and 
provide a cleaner natural resource for Fayette County.  


These credits, when applied to the customer’s account, will reduce the customer’s user fee amount. 
These credits will also be reviewed on a periodic basis by the County to insure compliance with this 
Stormwater Utility Credit Manual (the Manual.)  


Summary of Stormwater User Fee Credits  


Table 1 summarizes both structural and non-structural user fee credits available to the Stormwater 
Utility customers outlined in this manual.  Per County policy, the maximum user fee credit that a 
customer account can receive is 100% for No-impact parcels and 50% for all other parcels.  


Table 1- Stormwater User Fee Credits 


    Potential Stormwater User Fee Credit 


Best Management Practice  Term  
Single Family 


Residential (SFR)  
Non Single Family 
Residential (NSFR)  


Residential Environmental Technology  3 YEARS 20 %   
Rain Barrels  3 YEARS 20 %   


Low-Impact Parcel 
2 acres 5 YEARS 10 %   
5 acres 5 YEARS 15 %   
No-impact Parcel 5 YEARS 100 % 100%  
Watershed Stewardship   1 YEARS 10 %   
Septic Tank Maintenance  5 YEARS 20 % 20%  
Natural Area Preservation  5 YEARS 25 % 25 % 


Water Resources Education Programs   1 YEARS   50 % 
NPDES Industrial Stormwater General 
Permit Compliance   1 YEARS   10 % 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria   
Water Quality 3 YEARS   10 % 


Channel Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 
Overbank Flood Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 


Extreme Flood Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 
 
1-Shall be automatically applied to all parcels which meet the condition, as long as the property owner’s account is in good 
standing with Fayette County Stormwater Management.  
2- Residential customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively apply for credits 
related to the GSMM Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria.  







 


2 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 2 - Definitions  


Except as specifically defined in this manual, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 
definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Best Management Practice (BMP):  Schedules of activities, general good housekeeping practices, 
pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures, and other management 
practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to stormwater, 
receiving waters, or stormwater conveyance systems. BMPs also include treatment practices, flood 
controls, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or 
water disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage.  


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater user fee charge in 
recognition of a customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that developed property 
has on the County stormwater management systems, and/or the efforts of a customer to offset the 
County’s cost for implementation of the stormwater management program activities that include, but 
not limited to, public education, watershed stewardship, etc.  


County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes of this 
ordinance may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County or the County. 


Developed Land. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, compaction, 
construction of structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that hydrologic response of the 
property is changed from that which would occur in the natural undeveloped condition.  


Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual published by the 
Atlanta Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management Manual’ is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this ordinance. 
 
Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of 
stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes 
of the stormwater utility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved 
areas; improved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 
coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or 
that change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to development. 


Non-Single Family Residential Property (NSFR).  Developed property that consists of various 
non-residential land uses including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, office/institutional, 
public, transportation, industrial, manufacturing and storage buildings and facilities; (2) parking lots, 
parks, public and private schools, universities and hospitals; (3) streets, roads, water and wastewater 
treatment plants; and (4) any other form of use not specifically defined as a single family residential 
property. 


Single-Family Residential Property (SFR).  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with 
one (1) or more bedrooms, a bathroom, and cooling facilities, designed for occupancy by one or more 
persons, regardless of relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may be classified 
as single-family residential even if supplemental detached dwelling units are present that include but 
not limited to garages, carports, storage buildings and barns. 







 


3 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Stormwater Customers.  All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or benefiting from the 
utility's acquisition, management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater 
management systems and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, 
and activities related thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or 
benefited as a result of the stormwater management program.  


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 
inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systems. 


Stormwater Management Services.   All services provided by the County that relate to the: 
1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette County 


Stormwater Management System; 
2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems; 
3. Regulation of the use of stormwater management services and systems; and, 
4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and permit 


requirements. 
Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the quantity 
thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, 
facilities, operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) and 
environmental quality (pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, 
ponds, and reservoirs through improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, 
instrumentalities and properties used or useful in the collection, retention, detention, and treatment of 
stormwater or surface water drainage.  


Undeveloped Land.   Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified to such minimal 
degree as to have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered natural state shall be 
deemed undeveloped. Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, or compacted gravel surfaces 
or structures which create an impervious surface that would prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause 
stormwater to collect, concentrate, or flow in a manner materially different than that which would 
occur if the land was in an unaltered natural state. 







 


4 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 







 


5 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Section 3 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Policies  


The County has established the following general policies regarding consideration and approval of 
stormwater user fee credits. Please refer to Section 30-286 of the Stormwater Utility Rate 
Ordinance for additional guidance and requirements pertaining to the stormwater user fee credits.  


• Credit applications for existing facilities may be submitted at any time. However, the credit 
will be applied retroactively to the first stormwater bill cycle only for those credit 
applications received within one year from the end of the month of the first stormwater 
billing. After that time it will be applied in the next billing cycle after the credit has been 
approved.  


• Credit applications for new construction or redevelopment may be submitted once the 
BMPs are in place, approved by the County and the stormwater billing is scheduled.  


• A group of customers can only apply for a credit if 


o the property owners enter a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA); 


o all property signing the MOA are served by the same BMP(s) and; 


o the MOA is not canceled at any time during the term of the credit.  


• A residential homeowner’s association (HOA), or a common development such as a 
multi-family apartment complex and/or a manufactured home park, which has its own 
properly designed, constructed, and maintained stormwater BMP(s) should contact the 
County Stormwater Management Department to determine if the HOA members, or 
common development customers, are eligible for a credit.  For the purposes of the credit, 
the BMP(s) must be located on a parcel that is platted within the common development and 
owned by the HOA (or a single property owner within the subdivision or common 
development).  BMPs located on County owned properties are not eligible for credits to 
private property owners.  Additionally, BMPs that the County maintains through a 
dedicated maintenance easement or other legal agreement though lying within private 
property cannot be used by the customer for credit purposes.  


o For the purposes of awarding the credit, the credit being applied for must be met for 
the entire common development and must meet the Manual criteria.    


o Any resulting credit awarded will be divided among eligible customers within the 
HOA or the common development. 


 







 


6 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Section 4 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Application Process  


The application for a stormwater user fee credit is as follows: 


1. The customer shall obtain a copy of this manual (available online or in the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Office) and determine if a credit is applicable to their property. 
 


2. If applicable, the customer shall submit a completed application package, which can be 
found in the appendices of this document, for review based on this manual and an executed 
right of Entry Agreement. 
 


3. The County will review the application package and notify the customer if the request is 
approved or denied within 30 days of receipt of the completed application. Incomplete 
application packages will not be considered by the County and will be returned to the 
customer for completion and/or revision.  If the customer’s application is not approved, 
the County send written notification explaining the denial.   
 


4. If the credit application is approved, the County will apply the stormwater user fee credit to 
the next customer billing cycle, except those applications submitted and approved before 
June 1, 2012. Those applications submitted and approved before June 1, 2012 shall be 
retro-actively applied up to the time the user fee was initiated.   
 


5. Once approved the County may choose to conduct an onsite inspection of the applicant’s 
property, or review of non-structural practices, to ensure conformance to the manuals 
criteria. As such, part of a completed application the customer must grant the County a 
Right-of-Entry as outlined in Appendix X. This Right-of-Entry shall be valid for the entire time 
in which the credit is valid.  


Note: Stormwater user fee credits expire automatically at the end of the credit term.  It 
will be the responsibility of the customer to renew the credit at the appropriate time by 
resubmitting the application package for review and approval by the County.   


 


 


 


 







 


7 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES  


This section explains the procedures involved in applying for a stormwater user fee credit.  The 
procedures include step-by-step instructions and eligibility requirements for obtaining the 
Stormwater Utility credit.  


Listed below are the stormwater user fee credits that Stormwater Utility customers are eligible to 
apply for and secure.  Customers should follow the credit application procedures outlined herein 
for each credit they desire to secure.  


• Residential Environmental Technology  


• Rain Barrels  


• Low-Impact Parcel  


• No-impact Parcel 


• Watershed Stewardship   


• Septic Tank Maintenance  


• Natural Area Preservation  


• Water Resources Education Programs   


• NPDES Industrial Stormwater General Permit Compliance   


• Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria   


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Water Quality Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Channel Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Overbank Flood Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Extreme Flood Protection Volume 


 


In order to receive credits, the customer shall continue to conduct maintenance on all structural 
credits and will provide Fayette County Stormwater with the appropriate information for all 
non-structural credits.   







 


8 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Residential Environmental Technology (10% credit for 3 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


This credit shall be applied to eligible, 
county approved residential 
environmental technologies. These may 
include but are not limited to cisterns, rain 
gardens, pervious pavements, etc. Home 
owners should work with the County 
Stormwater Utility manager to select the 
appropriate Residential Environmental 
Technology. All residential environmental 
technologies shall be designed using the 
GSMM standards; if the GSMM does not 
have a standard for a technology other 
technical documentation may be used at 
the discretion of the Stormwater Utility 
manager.  


The credit shall be applied once 
documentation has been given to the 
Stormwater Utility manager confirming 
installation of the Residential 
Environmental Technology. 


The customer shall continue to maintain 
the Residential Environmental Technology 
during the full credit term of three years. Renewal of the stormwater user fee credit shall be in 
accordance with the procedures outlined in this Manual.  







 


9 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Rain Barrels (up to 20% for 3 years)  


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


The County recognizes that reducing the amount of runoff 
leaving a SFR property/site via interception and storage in rain 
barrels not only reduces the demand on the downstream 
drainage network but also reduces the need for irrigation water 
from the potable water system.  As such, the County has 
implemented a credit for those SFR customers who install rain 


barrels on their property to intercept and 
store runoff.  


A credit shall apply to those SFR customers 
who can provide documentation that 
either ½ or all of the downspouts from 
their roof gutter system are connected to 
a rain barrel of at least 40 gallons in size.  
For example, if a home has 4 downspouts 
then a total of 4 rain barrels would need to 
be installed such that a rain barrel has 
been placed under each discharge point in 
order to receive the maximum credit of 
20% off their total stormwater user fee.  
If a homeowner is unable to install rain 
barrels on all downspouts, then they may 
install rain barrels on ½ of their 


downspouts and be eligible for a credit of 10%.  Each SFR customer shall 
utilize the following procedures:  


The customer shall provide documentation via a sketch of the home and/or photographs of the rain 
barrels such that each downspout is connected to an approved rain barrel device.  


Approved rain barrels shall consist of a water tight barrel with a capacity of 40 gallons or more that 
intercepts runoff from a downspout.  Additionally, the rain barrel must have a spigot where stored 
runoff water can be drained in a controlled manner at a later time.  


If the SFR customer meets all the requirements above, the customer will receive a stormwater user 
fee credit of up to 20% off their stormwater user fee as outlined herein for a period of five years.    


The customer shall continue to maintain the SFR rain barrels during the full credit term of five years. 
Renewal of the stormwater user fee credit shall be in accordance with the procedures outlined in 
this Manual.   







 


10 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Low-Impact Parcel (10% or 15% credit for 5 years)   


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


There are several areas in the County 
where the amount of impervious area, in 
comparison to the total lot size, is 
relatively small. The resulting impact is a 
reduction of runoff impacts since most of 
the parcel is in an undeveloped or low 
impact. 


A credit of 10% shall apply automatically 
to all SFR customers whose parcels are 
larger than 2 acres and their impervious 
area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


A credit of 15% shall apply automatically 
to all SFR customers whose parcels are 
larger than 5 acres and their impervious 
area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


Note: If the stormwater utility fee is delinquent or in bad standings with the County, the credit 
will be revoked and the customer will have to reapply for the credit.  







 


11 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


No-Impact Parcel (100% for 5 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


  


A property or site that does not contribute to 
the stormwater runoff to the County’s public 
drainage system either directly or indirectly 
may be eligible for a No-impact stormwater 
user fee credit.  


The No-impact Parcel credit is available to 
customers who can demonstrate that the 
following conditions exist with regard to their 
property/site:   


Stormwater runoff after leaving the property 
does not drain or discharge to a 
County-owned drainage facility and/or 
system and ultimately drains or discharges to 
the drainage system of another local 
government or state waters such that the 
site discharge does not flow through the 
Fayette County public drainage system at any 


point downstream and/or Water Supply Watershed as defined by Rules of Georgia Department 
of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division Chapter 391-3-16 Rules for 
Environmental Planning Criteria.  


A credit of up to 100% off the stormwater user fee charge is available for No-impact parcel for a 
period of five years.  


The customer shall provide the County the necessary information pertaining to the drainage 
conveyance from their property to the appropriate downstream points.  This information should 
be documented in the form of a topographical (Fayette County GIS LiDar base topology is 
acceptable) based drainage map and a statement of accuracy prepared by a Georgia Professional 
Engineer, or Land Surveyor, unless otherwise approved by the Stormwater Utility Manager.    


 







 


12 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Watershed Stewardship (10% for 1 year) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


  


The County believes that education 
and natural resource protection is a 
vital part of holistic stormwater 
management program and a 
customer can receive credit for 
their efforts in this watershed 
stewardship. This credit is given for 
customers who participate in 
County approved programs 
including but not limited to Rivers 
Alive, Adopt-A-Stream, storm drain 
marking, etc. To receive the credit 
the customer must provide the 
participatory certification for the 
County’s Watershed Stewardship 
Program for each event.  


Please see the County for approval 
any event not conducted by or sponsored by the County. 


 


A 10% credit off the stormwater user fee is available for the Watershed Stewardship Credit for a 
period of one year.    


 







 


13 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Septic Tank Maintenance (20% for 5 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


 Customers are eligible for a stormwater 
user fee credit if the customer conducts 
approved maintenance activities on 
existing septic systems utilized for the 
customer’s property. Customers that have 
their septic tanks pumped out and/or 
maintained on a regular basis (minimum of 
every five years) can receive a credit.   


The customer shall provide receipt 
documentation with maintenance 
preformed, date and address from a 
certified hauler of septic waste as long as 
the date of maintenance and address are 
noted on the documentation (including 
receipts). The inspection/ maintenance 
needs to be performed within 6 months of 
the date of the application for a credit.  


A 20% credit off the stormwater user fee charge is available for five years for approved septic tank 
maintenance activities.  


 







 


14 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Natural Area Preservation (20% for 5 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


  


A stormwater credit may be granted when 
undisturbed natural areas are conserved on 
a site, thereby retaining their 
pre-development hydrologic and water 
quality characteristics. These areas can 
include: 


• Undeveloped land;   
• Federally recognized wetlands;  
• Lands containing Federally 


Endangered Species;  
• Undeveloped lands within stream 


buffers and/or floodplains; and  
• Constructed stormwater wetlands.  


The natural area must have a minimum 
contiguous area of 1 acre and must be 
located within an acceptable conservation 
easement instrument that ensures 
perpetual protection of the proposed area. 


The customer shall provide the County all 
applicable documentation regarding the conservation easement instrument sealed by a Georgia 
Professional Land Surveyor, including but not limited to a plat of the proposed area, the page book 
and page number recorded at the Clerk’s office. 


The customer is eligible to receive a 1% credit for every 1% of the total area of the parcel that is 
permanently protected.  The customer can receive a maximum of up to a 20% credit for an 
unlimited period of time.  


 







 


15 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Water Resources Education (50% for 1 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR  


  


The County encourages and supports 
the efforts of both public and private 
organizations to educate and inform the 
public on the importance of water 
conservation and water resources 
issues.   


The Water Resources Education 
Program credit is available for 
educational services in all public or 
private K-12 educational systems. The 
education program must be consistent 
with the County’s approved stormwater 
management education program and 
must also be pre-approved by the 
County. The credit shall be available to 
eligible customers that teach at least 
500 participants in an approved Water 


Resources Education Program.  


The program must address the following elements: stormwater runoff/pollution prevention or 
water conservation. 


The person responsible for the customer account shall certify to the County Stormwater Utility 
Manager, that a water resources based curriculum is being taught at the facility and provide 
detailed documentation verifying the program.    


A 50% credit off the stormwater user fee is available for the Water Resources Education credit for a 
period of five years.  







 


16 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


NPDES Industrial Stormwater Permit (10% for 1 year) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR  


  


NSFR customers can receive a stormwater 
user fee credit by complying with 
applicable NPDES Industrial Stormwater 
General Permit requirements.  
Implementation of the applicable 
compliance requirements assists the 
County in addressing water quality 
impairment issues at the source prior to 
discharge into the County’s Stormwater 
Management System and/or State Waters.  
If the NSFR customer has properly secured 
coverage under the NPDES Industrial 
Stormwater General Permit, and is in 
compliance with all applicable 
requirements, i.e. development and 
implementation of a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWP3), a credit 
application may be filed with the County to 
secure a credit.   


NSFR properties that operate NPDES 
Industrial Stormwater Permitted facility 
that must secure coverage per its Standard Industry Code (SIC) are eligible for a stormwater user 
fee credit.  For information regarding NPDES Industrial Stormwater Permit compliance 
requirements, please go to the Georgia Environmental Protection Division website. 
(www.gaepd.org) 


The credit amount available for NPDES Industrial Stormwater General Permit compliance is 10% off 
the stormwater user fee charge for a period of one year.  


In order to maintain the credit, the NSFR customer shall provide a copy of the NOI filed with the 
sate and send a copy of the annual report to the County Stormwater Utility Manager each year.  
Failure to make the required submittals could result in forfeiture of the stormwater user fee credit.    



http://www.gaepd.org/�





 


17 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria (up to 40%) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR*  


* SFR customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively apply for the credits 
related to the GSMM Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria after consultation with the Stormwater Utility Manager to 
establish potential eligibility.  


 The Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria is an 
integrated approach to addressing stormwater 
runoff impacts associated with both water 
quality and quantity issues.  Each of the unified 
stormwater sizing criteria is intended to be used 
in conjunction with the others to address the 
overall stormwater runoff impacts from a 
development site.  When used as an overall set 
of criteria, the unified stormwater sizing criteria 
control and manage the entire range of 
stormwater runoff events from the smallest 
storm events to the largest storm events (i.e. the 
100- year storm).  


The customer shall provide a hydrology report 
(or comparable document) prepared by and 


sealed by a Georgia Professional Engineer or Professional Hydrologist demonstrating compliance 
with the requirements and criteria outlined herein. Table 3 presents each treatment level with a 
description of each, as provided in the GSMM. 


A 10% credit off the stormwater user fee charge per the unified stormwater sizing criteria element 
is available for a period of three years.  


Table 3:  Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria  
Treatment Level  Maximum Available 


Credit  
Criteria Description  


Water Quality  10%  Treat the runoff from 85% of the storms that occur in an average year. Per 
the GSMM, this equates to providing water quality treatment for the runoff 
resulting from a rainfall depth of 1.2 inches. Reduce average annual 
post-development TSS loadings by 80%.  


Channel Protection  10%  Provide extended detention of the 1-year storm event released over a 
period of 24 hours to reduce bankfull flows and protect downstream 
channels from erosive velocities and unstable conditions.  


Overbank Flood Protection  10%  Provide peak discharge control of the 25-year storm event such that the 
post-development peak rate does not exceed the predevelopment rate to 
reduce overbank flooding.  


Extreme Flood Protection  10%  Evaluate the effects of the 100-year storm on the stormwater management 
system, adjacent property, and downstream facilities and property. Manage 
the impacts of the extreme storm event through detention controls and/or 
floodplain management.  


Note:  The criteria description for each stormwater runoff treatment level is in general accordance with information published in the GSMM and the CSS.  


  







 


18 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


The customer shall continue to conduct maintenance as per the maintenance plan provided with 
the original application.  The customer may reapply for the credit every three years.  If a 
customer is reapplying for the unified stormwater sizing criteria user fee credit and site conditions 
have not changed since the original application, the application only needs to include a copy of the 
original design information and certification that all the necessary maintenance has been 
performed per the maintenance plan for re-issuance of the credit.  If significant changes to the site 
layout and/or site stormwater controls has occurred, the County may request design information be 
updated to document compliance with Manual criteria.    


In order to maintain eligibility for the credit, the customer must properly maintain the onsite 
stormwater controls that were documented in the user fee credit application for the term specified 
in the Manual.  Furthermore, all stormwater control design, construction and maintenance shall 
be done in strict accordance with the County’s current ordinances and design standards related to 
stormwater management.  







 


19 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


STORMWATER USER FEE CREDIT APPLICATION FORMS & OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS FORMS  


  


Stormwater user fee credit applications are required to secure approval of all credits offered in this 
Manual.  The forms and documents attached to the appendices are summarized below.  


  


Appendix A includes the credit application form for the SFR stormwater user fee credits described 
in this Manual.    


 


Appendix B includes the credit application form for the NSFR stormwater user fee credits described 
in this Manual.    


 


Appendix C includes the credit application forms for each available credit. 


 


Appendix D includes miscellaneous forms required as part of the stormwater user fee credit 
application process, including a Right-of-Entry Agreement.  







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix A 


SFR Credit Application 







Fayette County 
SFR Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form 
 


General Customer Information 


Name  


Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Home Phone  


E-Mail Address  


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 


Property Information 


Parcel ID Number  


Parcel Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Authorized Contact (if different than owner)  
 


Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application) 


 Residential Environmental Technology  No-impact Parcel 


 Rain Barrels  Watershed Stewardship   


 Low-Impact Parcel  Septic Tank Maintenance 


 Natural Area Preservation  


Authorization 


I hereby request Fayette County to review this application for a stormwater service fee credit. I further 
authorize the County to investigate the impervious area characteristics of the above identified parcel for 
the purpose of assessment for a stormwater user fee credit. I certify that I have authority to make such 
a request and grant such authority for this property. The attached information is true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge and belief. I agree to provide corrected information should there be any change in 
the information provided herein. (The financially responsible person must sign this form if an individual, or if not an individual, by 
an officer, director, partner, or registered agent with authority to execute instruments for the financially responsible person). 
 
 


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


Approval:   


   


Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix B 


NSFR Credit Application 







Fayette County 
NSFR Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form 
 


General Information 


Name  


Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Home Phone  


E-Mail Address  


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 


Property Information 


Parcel ID Number  


Parcel Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Authorized Contact (if different than owner) 
 


Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application) 


 No-impact Parcel    Water Quality 


 Natural Area Preservation  Channel Protection 


 Water Resources Education Programs    Overbank Flood Protection 


 NPDES Industrial Permit Compliance    Extreme Flood Protection 


Authorization 


I hereby request Fayette County to review this application for a stormwater service fee credit. I further 
authorize the County to investigate the impervious area characteristics of the above identified parcel for 
the purpose of assessment for a stormwater user fee credit. I certify that I have authority to make such 
a request and grant such authority for this property. The attached information is true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge and belief. I agree to provide corrected information should there be any change in 
the information provided herein. (The financially responsible person must sign this form if an individual, or if not an individual by 
an officer, director, partner, or registered agent with authority to execute instruments for the financially responsible person). 
 
 


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


Approval:   


   


Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix C 


Credit Forms 







Fayette County 
Residential Environmental Technology Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Environmental Technology to be utilized 


 Cistern(s)  Vegetated (Green) Roof 


 Rain garden(s)  Other: _____________________ 


 Pervious Pavement  


 Bioretention Area(s)  


Submittal Requirements 
 


 Site Plan  


 Structural Design  


 Maintenance Schedule  


 Installation Date: _________________________  


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


        
Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
Approval: 
 


  


   


Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County  
Rain Barrels Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Site Plan 


 Structural Design 


 Maintenance Schedule 


 Size of Rain Barrels: ______________________ 


 Total Number of Downspouts: _____________ 


 Number of Downspouts with Rain Barrels: _____________ 


 Installation Date: _____________________ 


 


 


        
Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


   


   


Staff Use Only 


Credit Amount:                     


 10% Credit   20% Credit         
  


 
Approval: 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Low-Impact Parcel Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Parcel Acreage: ___________ 


 Impervious Area: __________ 


 Percent Imperviousness: __________ 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
No-Impact Parcel Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Parcel Topology Map 


 Drains To: ___________________________________________________ 


 


 


 


Professional Seal 


 
In my professional opinion the property located at ___________________________ does not 
drain/discharge to a County-owned drainage facility and/or system and does not drain/discharge to 
a Water Supply Watershed as defined by Rules of Georgia Department of Natural Resources 
Environmental Protection Division Chapter 391-3-16 Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria. 
 
 


Professional Signature  Date 


 
        


Customer name (print)  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


            







Fayette County 
Watershed Stewardship Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Earth Day 


 Rivers Alive 


 Adopt-a-Stream 


 Other: __________________________________ 


 Event Application Sheet (approved by Stormwater Manager) 


 Event Certificate of Attendance. 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Septic Tank Maintenance Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Certified Hauler: ____________________________ 


 Date Maintained: ____________________________ 


 Documentation (including receipts) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Natural Area Preservation Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Type of Natural Area for Preservation 


 Undeveloped land in its natural state 


 Federally recognized wetlands 


 Lands containing Federally Endangered Species (including documentation) 


 Undeveloped lands within stream buffers and/or floodplains 


 Constructed stormwater wetlands 


 Other: ________________________________________________ 


Submittal Requirements 


 Site Plan 


 Amount of Area in Preservation 


 Documentation Submitted to the Clerk’s Office 


 Page Book: __________      Page Number: __________   


 


 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Watershed Stewardship Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Approximate Number of Students: ______________________ 


 Curriculum Detail Attachment 


 


 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
NPDES Industrial Stormwater General Permit Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 SIC Code: _______________________ 


 Type of Industrial Activity: _____________________________ 


 Copy of NPDES NOI (must have been submitted to the state) 


 Copy of Stormwater Pollution Protection Plan (SWPPP) 


 Copy of NPDES Annual Report 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Type Sizing Criteria 


 Water Quality 


 Channel Protection 


 Overbank Flood Protection 


 Extreme Flood Protection 


Submittal Requirements 


 Site Plan 


 Hydrology Study 


 Inspection and Maintenance Plan 


 Installation and Maintenance Date: __________________________   


 


 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
Staff Use Only 


Credit Amount:                     


 10% Credit   20% Credit            30% Credit           40% Credit   
         


 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Stormwater Manager  Date 


 







 


 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix D 


Right-of-Entry Agreement 







RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
 
I/We                            , the owner and/or tenant (circle which one or both) of the property commonly 


identified as                                              , Fayette County, State of Georgia, do hereby grant and give freely and 


without coercion, the right of access and entry to said property to the Fayette County, its agents, contractors, and 


subcontractors thereof, for the purpose of performing necessary evaluations of onsite stormwater facilities, controls and site 


activities related to stormwater runoff management on         (hereinafter “property”)  located 


in Fayette County, Georgia. 


 


It is fully understood that this agreement shall not constitute or in any way be construed as to obligate Fayette County to 


perform any work on the above described property.  The undersigned agrees and warrants to waive and hold harmless 


Fayette County, its agents, contractors, and subcontractors, for damage of any type, or any claim or action, either legal or 


equitable that might arise out of any activities on the above described property that are conducted by Fayette County, its 


agents, contractors and subcontractors, pursuant to this Agreement.   


 


In consideration of this Right of Entry Agreement and the rights granted to Fayette County herein, the receipt and sufficiency 


of which is hereby acknowledged, Fayette County agrees, to perform only visual evaluations, and review pertinent property 


records and information, necessary to verify stormwater user fee credit eligibility. 


 


I/We, will not receive(d) any monetary compensation or any other consideration for this Right of Entry agreement other than 


the visual inspection expressly contained herein. 


 


Any interference by the property owner of Fayette County’s right of entry will immediately terminate Fayette County’s 


obligation to perform any further work on the property and the property owner will be responsible for completing the work 


described herein at their own expense. 


 


For the considerations and purposes set forth herein, I set my hand this    day of      20         . 


 


 


____________________________     ____________________________ 


Witness        Owner      


_____________________________     ____________________________    


Notary        Owner 


      ____________________________ 


           Address    


  







STATE OF GEORGIA;  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2011-08 
 
 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY BY 
ADOPTING A NEW ARTICLE ?, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT,TO CHAPTER 
19,UTILITIES, RELATING TO STORMWATER MANAGEMENT IN UNINCORPORATED 
FAYETTE COUNTY; STATING FINDINGS REGARDING STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT NEEDS IN UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY; ESTABLISHING A 
STORMWATER UTILITY AS A DEDICATED ENTERPRISE ACCOUNTING UNIT OF THE 
DIVISION OF UTILITY SERVICES, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT; 
STATING THE SERVICE AREA, PURPOSES, AND POWERS OF THE UTILITY; 
PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; STATING GENERAL SERVICE CHARGE RATE POLICIES; 
DECLARING THAT INDIVIDUAL SECTIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE 
SEVERABLE ONE FROM ANOTHER; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of Commissioners 


thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the ethical 
standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County is responsible for the protection and preservation of the public health, 


safety, and welfare of the community; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is authorized by Article IX, Section II, 


Paragraph 111(a) (6) of the Georgia Constitution to provide stormwater management throughout the 
unincorporated area of Fayette County; 


 
WHEREAS, the federal Clean Water Act as amended by the Water Quality Act of 1987 (33 U.S.C. 1251 


et seq.) and rules promulgated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the Act place 
increased emphasis on the role of local governments in developing, implementing, conducting and funding 
stormwater management programs which address water quality impacts of storm water runoff; 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County commissioned a stormwater funding feasibility analysis by Integrated 


Science and Engineering that has been delivered to the County and has been examined, reviewed and discussed 
by the Board of Commissioners; 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds and concludes from the professional engineering and 


financial analysis that substantial stormwater management program operational and capital investment needs 
exist; 


 
WHEREAS, the professional engineering and financial analysis indicates that adequate and stable 


funding will be essential if the county is to meet its future stormwater management program operational and 
capital investment needs; and 


 


Page 1 of 12 







WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Commissioners to proceed with the development, 
implementation, and operation of a utility for stormwater management accounted for in the County budget as a 
separate enterprise fund dedicated solely to stormwater management and to institute funding methods associated 
therewith; 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, AND IT IS 
HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Chapter 19, Utilities, is hereby amended by adopting Article 6, Stormwater Management,  to read 
as follows: 
 
Sec. 19-96. Findings. 


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia makes the following findings:  


(b) The professional engineering and financing analyses, prepared by Integrated Science and Engineering, Inc., 
properly assesses and defines the stormwater management problems, needs, goals, program priorities and funding 
opportunities of unincorporated Fayette County.   


(c) Given the problems, needs, goals, program priorities, and funding opportunities identified in the professional 
engineering and financing analyses, it is appropriate to authorize the formation of an organizational and 
accounting entity dedicated specifically to the management, maintenance, protection, control, regulation, use, and 
enhancement of stormwater systems in unincorporated Fayette in concert with other water resource management 
programs.  


(d) Stormwater management is applicable and needed throughout the unincorporated boundaries of Fayette 
County. While specific service and facility demands may differ from area to area at any given point in time, a 
stormwater management service area encompassing all lands and water bodies within the unincorporated 
boundaries of Fayette County is consistent with the present and future needs of the community.  


(e) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County include, but are not limited to, protecting the public 
health, safety, and welfare. Provision of stormwater management programs and facilities renders and/or results in 
both service and benefit to all properties, property owners, citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety 
of ways as identified in the professional engineering and financial analyses. The service and benefit rendered or 
resulting from provision of stormwater management systems and facilities may differ depending on many factors 
and considerations, including but not limited to location, demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater 
systems and programs, and risk exposure.  


(f) Fayette County presently owns and operates stormwater management systems and facilities which have been 
developed over many years. The future usefulness of the existing stormwater systems owned and operated by the 
County, and of additions and improvements thereto, rests on the ability of the County to effectively manage, 
protect, control, regulate, use, and enhance stormwater systems and facilities in Fayette County in concert with 
the management of other water resources in the County. In order to do so, the County must have adequate and 
stable funding for its stormwater management program operating and capital investment needs.  


(g) The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that a Stormwater Utility provides the most 
practical and appropriate means of properly delivering and funding stormwater management services in 
unincorporated Fayette County.  


(h) An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities can be provided by adopting 


Page 2 of 12 







a schedule of service charges upon properties that is related to the burden of stormwater quality control service 
requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County. Such schedule of service charges can be 
complemented by other funding methods which address specific needs, including but not limited to, allocations 
of special purpose local options sales taxes to stormwater drainage improvement projects. A service charge credit 
is an appropriate means of adjusting service charges in recognition that private stormwater systems and/or 
actions can effectively reduce or eliminate the burden of stormwater quantity and quality control service 
requirements and costs that a property or properties pose for the County. Impervious area is the most important 
factor influencing stormwater service requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County, and 
therefore is an appropriate parameter for calculating stormwater service charges and associated credits. In 
addition, the value to the stormwater utility of certain actions and practices performed by property owners and 
other stormwater utility customers may be recognized by credits based on other factors, including but not limited 
to, the avoided cost of public information and education realized by the utility when public information and 
education about stormwater management is provided by the public school system.  


 
(i) A schedule of Stormwater Utility user fee charges based on the area of impervious surface located on each 
improved property is the most appropriate and equitable means of allocating the cost of stormwater management 
services throughout the County. Such user fee charges may be complemented by other types of charges which 
address specific needs, including, but not limited to, special service fees, special assessments, revenue bonds, use 
of proceeds from special purpose local option sales taxes and other forms of revenue, as deemed appropriate by 
the Board of Commissioners.  


 
(j) The existence of privately owned and maintained on-site or off-site systems, facilities, activities or assets that 
reduce or otherwise mitigate the impact of a particular property on the Stormwater Utility’s cost of providing 
stormwater management services and/or stormwater management systems and facilities, can be taken into 
account to reduce the user fee charge on that property in the form of a credit, and such credit should be 
conditioned upon continuing provision of such services, systems, facilities, activities or assets in a manner 
complying with the standards and codes as determined by the Stormwater Utility Manager. 


 
(k) It is imperative that the proceeds from all user fee charges for stormwater management services, systems or 
facilities, together with any other revenues raised or otherwise allocated specifically to stormwater management 
services, systems or facilities, be dedicated solely to those purposes, and such proceeds of user fee charges and 
revenues shall therefore be deposited into the enterprise accounting fund of the Stormwater Utility and shall 
remain in that fund and be dispersed only for stormwater management capital, operating and non-operating costs, 
lease payments and debt service of bonds or other indebtedness for stormwater management purposes. 


Sec. 19-97.   Definitions. 


Except as specifically defined in this chapter, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 
definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater user fee charge in recognition of a 
customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that developed property has on the County stormwater 
management systems, and/or the efforts of a customer to offset the County’s cost for implementation of the 
stormwater management program activities that include, but not limited to, public education, watershed 
stewardship, etc.  


County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes of this ordinance 
may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County or the County. 


Page 3 of 12 







Developed Land. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, compaction, construction of 
structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that hydrologic response of the property is changed from 
that which would occur in the natural undeveloped condition.  


Fayette County Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Manual. A technical guidance manual published by Fayette 
County that defines user fee credits available to private and public entities that undertake specific stormwater 
management activities and criteria and procedures for customers to secure and maintain stormwater user fee 
credit(s).  The ‘Fayette County Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Manual’ is hereby incorporated by reference. 


Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual published by the Atlanta 
Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management Manual’ is hereby incorporated by reference into 
this ordinance. 
 
Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of stormwater 
into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes of the stormwater 
utility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved areas; improved vehicular drives 
and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic coverings; and other surfaces that prevent 
or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or that change the hydrologic response of the property that 
existed prior to development. 


Hydrologic Response. The manner and means whereby stormwater collects, remains, infiltrates, and is conveyed 
from a property. It is dependent on several factors including, but not limited to, the presence of impervious area; 
the size, shape, topographic, vegetative, and geologic conditions of a property; antecedent moisture conditions; 
and groundwater conditions on a property. 


Non-Single Family Residential Property.  Developed property that consists of various non-residential land uses 
including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, office/institutional, public, transportation, industrial, 
manufacturing and storage buildings and facilities; (2) parking lots, parks, public and private schools, universities 
and hospitals; (3) streets, roads, water and wastewater treatment plants; and (4) any other form of use not 
specifically defined as a single family residential property. 


Service Charge.  A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, reflective of the service provided 
by Fayette County Stormwater Utility. Service charges are based on measurable parameters which influence the 
stormwater utility's cost of providing services and facilities, with the most important factor being the amount of 
impervious area on each parcel of land, which is the user-rate fee charge. The use of impervious area as a service 
charge rate parameter shall not preclude the use of other parameters to determine the impact on the stormwater 
utility's cost of providing stormwater management services and facilities. Stormwater service charges may also 
include special charges to the owners of particular properties for services or facilities uniquely related to 
stormwater management of that property, including but not limited to charges for development plan review, 
inspection of development projects and on-site stormwater control systems, and enhanced level of stormwater 
services above those normally provided by the County. 


Single-Family Residential Property.  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with one (1) or more 
bedrooms, a bathroom, and cooling facilities, designed for occupancy by one or more persons, regardless of 
relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may be classified as single-family residential even 
if supplemental detached dwelling units are present that include but not limited to garages, carports, storage 
buildings and barns. 


Stormwater Customers.  All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or benefiting from the utility's 
acquisition, management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater management 


Page 4 of 12 







systems and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, and activities related 
thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or benefited as a result of the 
stormwater management program.  


Stormwater Drainage Influence Zone.  Areas lying downstream of a culvert, or other stormwater management 
conveyance system. On the downstream side of the conveyance system, the stormwater influence zone will extend 
for a length of six times the diameter (or width) of the culvert from which runoff is being discharged (Field 
Manual for Erosion and Sediment Control in Georgia, Third Edition, pg. 99), and within the horizontal limits set 
forth in the aforementioned field manual. For example, if a 48-inch diameter culvert is discharging to a private 
property, the stormwater drainage influence zone shall extend 24 feet (six times 48 inches) from the end of the 
culvert and for the specified width (i.e. typically the width of the creek). The County stormwater utility may 
perform maintenance and/or capital construction activities only within that portion of the public water influence 
zone which the County has an ownership interest in, or for which a dedicated easement has been granted to, and 
accepted by the County for such purpose. 


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes inlets, 
street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systems. 


Stormwater Management Services.   All services provided by the County that relate to the: 
1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management System; 
2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems; 
3. Regulation of the use of stormwater management services and systems; and, 
4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and permit 


requirements. 
Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the quantity thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, facilities, 
operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) and environmental quality 
(pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds, and reservoirs through 
improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, instrumentalities and properties used or 
useful in the collection, retention, detention, and treatment of stormwater or surface water drainage.  


Undeveloped Land.   Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified to such minimal degree as to 
have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered natural state shall be deemed undeveloped. 
Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, or compacted gravel surfaces or structures which create an 
impervious surface that would prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause stormwater to collect, concentrate, or 
flow in a manner materially different than that which would occur if the land was in an unaltered natural state. 


Sec. 19-98. Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility within the Fayette County Utility Services which shall be 
responsible for stormwater management services throughout the unincorporated County limits, and shall provide 
for the management, protection, control, regulation, use, and enhancement of the County’s stormwater 
management system. Such utility shall be under the direction of a Stormwater Management Director.  


(b) The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish a Stormwater Enterprise 
Fund in the County budget and accounting system, separate and apart from its General Fund, for the purpose of 
dedicating and protecting all funding applicable to the purposes and responsibilities of the utility, including but 
not limited to rentals, rates, charges, fees, and licenses as may be established by the Board of Commissioners. All 
revenues and receipts of the stormwater utility shall be deposited promptly upon receipt into the Stormwater 


Page 5 of 12 







Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the purposes dedicated, and expended exclusively for 
purposes of the stormwater utility, including capital project construction. No other funds of the County shall be 
deposited in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund or commingled with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that 
other revenues, receipts, and resources not accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, including, but not 
limited to, grants, transfers of County funds, loans, and bond proceeds may be combined with and applied to 
stormwater management as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners, upon recommendation of the 
County Administrator.  


Sec. 19-99. Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility. 


(a) The stormwater utility shall be responsible for stormwater management throughout the unincorporated limits 
of Fayette County government. The utility shall provide for the conservation, management, protection, control, 
use, and enhancement of stormwater through planning, acquisition, construction, installation, management, 
operation, maintenance, regulation, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater drainage systems to 
collect, control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and treat stormwater and through regulation of stormwater 
management systems on private property. It shall be the long-term objective of the County to provide a 
comparable and consistent level of stormwater service to similarly situated properties throughout the service 
area.  


(b) The County owns or has legal access for purposes of operation, maintenance and improvements to those 
segments of the Fayette County Stormwater Management System that:  


(1) Are located within public streets, rights-of-way, and easements; 


(2) Are subject to easements, rights-of-entry, rights-of-access, rights-of-use, or other permanent 
provisions for adequate access for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater 
drainage systems; or, 


(3) Are located on public lands to which the County has adequate access for operation, maintenance, 
and/or improvement of stormwater drainage systems and facilities.  


(c) Operation and maintenance of stormwater management systems located on private property or public property 
not owned by Fayette County and for which there has been no public dedication and acceptance of such systems 
and/or facilities for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of the systems and facilities shall be and remain 
the legal responsibility of the property owner, or its occupant, except as that responsibility may be otherwise 
affected by the laws of the State of Georgia and/or the United States of America.  


(d) It is the intent of this ordinance to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of all properties and 
persons in general, but not to create any special duty or relationship with any individual person or to any 
specified property within or without the boundaries of Fayette County. Fayette County expressly reserves the 
right to assert all available immunities and defenses in any action seeking to impose monetary damages upon the 
County, its officers, employees and agents arising out of any alleged failure or breach of duty or relationship as 
may now exist or hereafter be created. To the extent any permit, plan approval, inspection or similar act is 
required by the County as a condition precedent to any activity by or upon property not owned by the County, 
pursuant to this or any other regulatory ordinance, regulation or rule of the County or under Federal or State law, 
the issuance of such permit, plan approval, or inspection shall not be deemed to constitute a warranty, express or 
implied, nor shall afford the basis for any action, including any action based on failure to permit or negligent 
issuance of a permit, seeking the imposition of money damages against the County, its officers, employees or 
agents.  


Sec. 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods. 


Page 6 of 12 







The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by the County on behalf of 
all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law places necessary and appropriate 
obligations on private property owners as well.  The stormwater utility may provide for inspection of private 
stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities to ascertain that the stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities 
are functioning as designed and approved by the County. 


(a) All property owners of improved property within the incorporated areas of unincorporated Fayette County 
shall provide, manage, maintain, and operate on-site stormwater management systems sufficient to collect, 
convey, detain, and discharge stormwater runoff in a safe manner consistent with all applicable County 
development regulations, ordinances, and State and Federal laws. Any failure to meet this obligation shall 
constitute a violation of this article and be subject to citation and prosecution in the Fayette County Municipal 
Court. Each day such violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, subject to the penalties set forth in 
Section? of the Code of the Fayette County. 


(b) The County shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of this ordinance, for its designated officers and 
employees to enter upon private and public property owned by entities other than the County, upon reasonable 
notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the property and conduct surveys and engineering tests thereon in order to 
assure compliance. 


(c) If determined by the Stormwater Management Department, undocumented drainage systems, located on 
private property that are connected to the County’s stormwater drainage system, shall be permitted and improved 
by the property owner to ensure proper function to the public system. This determination may be based upon on 
the severity of stormwater problems, current or potential damage to the publicly-owned stormwater management 
system and potential hazards to the public health, safety and welfare. 


(d) In the event a public nuisance is deemed to exist by the Stormwater Management Department, the County may 
elect to sue in the Superior Court of Fayette County to abate such nuisance. In the event a public nuisance is 
found by the court to exist, which the property owner fails to abate within such reasonable time as allowed by the 
Superior Court, the County may enter upon the property and cause work as is reasonably necessary to be 
performed, with the actual cost thereof assessed against the property owner in the same manner as a tax levied 
against the property. From date of filing of such abatement action, the County shall have lien rights which may 
be perfected, after judgment, by filing a notice of lien on the general execution docket of the Superior Court of 
Fayette County. 


(e) Any failure to meet the obligations set forth in this Ordinance shall constitute a nuisance and be subject to an 
abatement action filed by the County in the ? Court. In the event a public nuisance is found by the Court to exist, 
which the owner fails to properly abate within such reasonable time as allowed by the Court, the County may 
enter upon the property and cause such work as is reasonably necessary to be performed. The actual cost thereof 
shall be assessed against the owner in the same manner as a tax levied against the property. 


(f) The County shall have lien rights from the date of the filing of the abatement action by the County, and said 
lien rights may be perfected through: 


(1) A judgment; and, 


(2) The filing of a writ of fieri facias against all property of the person or entity against whom the 
assessment was made. Upon issuance of said fi. fa., and forwarding of same to the Sheriff, the Sheriff 
shall be authorized pursuant to Georgia law to levy same upon the property of the owner to satisfy the 
amount due on the judgment.  


These enforcement methods shall be perfected by filing a notice of lien on the General Execution Docket of the 


Page 7 of 12 







Superior Court of Fayette County. A fi. fa. issued by any court in the State of Georgia can be recorded on the 
General Execution Docket of the Superior Court of any other county in the state in which the owner possesses 
property. When the execution has been entered upon the docket, the lien shall date from such entry. 


State law reference — O.C.G.A. § 9-12-81(b). 


Sec. 19-101. Stormwater Service Charges. 
The stormwater management utility shall recover the cost of providing stormwater services and facilities by 
imposing a stormwater user fee on all developed properties within the service area in a fair and equitable manner. 
The stormwater management utility shall apportion the cost of delivering stormwater services to all developed 
properties based on the demand the property places on the County's stormwater management program and the 
stormwater services provided by the County. 
 
It shall be the goal of the Board of Commissioners to establish stormwater user fee rates that are fair, equitable 
and reasonable, and together with other funding sources available to the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Utility, such as special service fees and charges deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners to customers 
for services, systems, and/or facilities related to stormwater management (e.g. credit application fees, plan review 
fees, development inspection fees, regulatory compliance inspection fees, special assessments and other fees 
related to provision of stormwater management services), are sufficient to support the cost of the stormwater 
management services, including, but not limited to, the payment of principal and interest on debt obligations, 
lease payments, operating expenses, capital outlays, non-operating expenses, provisions for prudent reserves and 
other costs as deemed appropriate by the County. 
 
The basis for calculation of the stormwater user fee rate to all developed property within the County is established 
in this article. The County shall assign or determine the amount of impervious area and other pertinent factors as 
may be needed for the fair, reasonable and equitable allocation of the costs to deliver stormwater management 
services and to calculate the stormwater user fee charges for all developed properties in the County. 


(a) User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


(1) Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 1,000 square feet of impervious 
area located on the property to establish the total number of billing units for billing. The total square 
footage impervious area will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000 ft. increment. (Ex. A property 
with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall contain 1 equivalent runoff unit.) 


(2) Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent runoff units, because of the 
hydrologic response characteristics of these materials.  (Ex. A property with 2,000 square feet of 
gravel area shall be equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to 1 equivalent runoff 
unit.) 


(b) Calculation of Rate. The periodic stormwater user fee charges imposed on all developed properties shall be a 
rate of $0.35 per 1000 square feet per month. 


Sec. 19-102. Stormwater User-fee Billing/Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. 


(1) The stormwater user fee charge will be billed and collected as deemed most effective and efficient 
by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


(2) Stormwater user fee charges shall begin to accrue (date), and shall be billed periodically, 


Page 8 of 12 







thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions and credits may apply. A bill for stormwater 
user fee charges may be sent through the United States Postal Service or by alternative means, 
notifying the owner of the property being billed of the amount of the stormwater user fee charge, less 
credits, the date the payment is due and the date when payment is past due. 


(b) Delinquencies. 


(1)  Failure to receive a bill shall not be justification for nonpayment. Regardless of the party to 
whom the bill is initially directed, the owner of each developed property subject to stormwater user 
fee charges shall be obligated to pay stormwater user fee charges and any interest on delinquent 
stormwater user fee charge payments. 


(2) Any service charge or portion of a service charge not paid when due may be recovered in an 
action at law or equity by the County.  


(3) No lien shall be imposed for delinquent collections unless a judgment is first obtained from a 
court of competent jurisdiction. 


(4) Suits for collection shall be commenced by the County in the county of the owner's residence; 
provided, however, if the owner is not a resident of this state, suit may be filed in the Superior or 
State Court of Fayette County, Georgia. If a suit is instituted by the County for collection, the owner 
shall pay court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County.  


(5) If suit is instituted for the collection of any fees due hereunder or for the enforcement of this 
Ordinance, the owner shall pay the court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees 
associated therewith.  


Sec. 19-103. Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges. 


Except as provided in this section or otherwise provided by law, no public or private property located in the 
incorporated area of Fayette County shall be exempt from the stormwater user fee charges. No exception, credit, 
offset, or other reduction in stormwater user fee charges shall be granted based on age, tax status, economic status, 
race, religion or other condition unrelated to the Stormwater Utility’s cost of providing stormwater management 
services and facilities. 


(a) Exemptions to the stormwater user fee charges are as follows: 


(1) Railroad rights-of-way (tracks) shall be exempt from stormwater user fee charges.  However, 
railroad stations, maintenance buildings, and/or other improved property used for railroad purposes 
shall not be exempt from stormwater user fee charges. 


(2) Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from 
stormwater user fee charges. This exemption is in recognition of routine drainage system maintenance 
and capital construction services undertaken by GDOT in association with GDOT rights-of-way and 
road systems. However, maintenance buildings and/or other improved property used for GDOT 
purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater user fee charges. All other State, Federal, and County 
properties are subject to the user fee charges on the same basis as private properties. 
 


(3) Fayette County owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from stormwater user fee 
charges. This exemption is in consideration for the County allowing the Stormwater Utility to use the 
County’s existing street, curbs, gutters, drainage ways and ditches, storm sewers, culverts, inlets, 


Page 9 of 12 







catch basins, pipes, head walls and other structures, natural and man-made, that controls and diverts 
surface water for the purposes of collecting, diverting, transporting and controlling surface and storm 
waters. However, other improved property owned and used for County purposes shall not be exempt 
from stormwater user fee charges. 


 


(b) The Stormwater Management Department shall grant credits or adjustments based on the technical and 
procedural criteria set forth in the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual, which shall be adopted and 
amended by and at the discretion of the Board of Commissioners as an operating policy of the Stormwater 
Utility. Copies of the Credit Technical Manual shall be maintained by and available from the Stormwater 
Management Department. 


Sec. 19-104. Effective Date of Stormwater Charges. 


Stormwater service charges shall accrue beginning?  and shall be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, 
except as specific exemptions and credits may apply. 


 


Sec. 19-105. Appeals.  
Any customer who believes the provisions of this Article have been applied in error may appeal in the following 
manner. 
(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Stormwater Management Director. In the case of 
service charge appeals, the appeal shall include a survey prepared by a registered land surveyor or professional 
engineer containing information on the total property area, the impervious surface area, and any other features or 
conditions which influence the hydrologic response of the property to rainfall events. 
 


(b) Based on the information provided, a technical review shall be conducted by the Stormwater Management 
Director of the Stormwater Utility and a written determination will be issued within thirty (30) days stating 
whether an adjustment to the service charge is appropriate and, if so, the amount of such adjustment.  


 
(c) In response to an appeal, the Stormwater Management Director may adjust the stormwater service charge 
applicable to a property in conformance with the general purpose and intent of this chapter.  
 


(d) A decision of the Stormwater Management Director which is adverse to an appellant may be further appealed 
to the Director’s supervisor within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of the adverse decision. Notice of the 
appeal shall be served on the Director’s supervisor by the appellant, stating the grounds for the appeal. The 
Director’s supervisor shall issue a written decision on the appeal within thirty (30) days. All decisions of the 
Director’s supervisor shall be served on the appellant personally or by registered or certified mail, sent to the 
billing address of the appellant.  


 
(e) If the person or entity seeking adjustment or relief from the service charge desires, the decision of the 
Stormwater Management Director’s supervisor may be appealed in writing to the Board of Commissioners. Such 
appeals must be made within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Director’s supervisor and include a written 
basis for the appeal. The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be final. 
 


(f) This appeal process shall not interfere with the rights of the person or entity to seek judicial relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction, but shall be exhausted before judicial relief is pursued. Any appeal to the Superior Court 


Page 10 of 12 







of Fayette County must be filed within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Board of Commissioners.  
 


 
(g) Notices of the appeal and decisions shall be served personally or delivered by registered or certified mail to 
the address of record.  


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by reference 
as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by the Board of 
Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other 
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of 
the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2010. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
  ________________________________________ 
                                  Herb Frady, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 


Page 11 of 12 





		Stormwater Utility - Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Stormwater Utility - Revised  Recommendation Backup1

		Stormwater Utility - 3-yr Program Cost Backup2

		Cost of Service

		Rate Model



		Stormwater Utility  - Credit Technical Manual Backup3

		SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

		SECTION 2 - Definitions

		Section 3 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Policies

		Section 4 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Application Process

		SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

		Eligible Customer Classes: SFR



		Appendixes.pdf

		2 - SFR Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		Fayette County

		General Customer Information

		Property Information

		Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application)



		Word Bookmarks

		Check1





		3 - NSFR Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		Fayette County

		General Information

		Property Information

		Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application)



		Word Bookmarks

		Check1





		4 - Res Enviro Tech Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		Fayette County

		General Information

		Environmental Technology to be utilized

		Submittal Requirements



		Word Bookmarks

		Check1





		5 - Rain Barrels  Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements

		Staff Use Only

		Credit Amount:

		10% Credit   20% Credit



		General Information



		6 - Low-Impact Parcel Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		7 - No-impact Parcel Parcel Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		8 - Watershed Stewardship Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		9 - Septic Tank Maintenance Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		10 - Natural Area Preservation Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Type of Natural Area for Preservation



		General Information



		11 - Water Resources Education Programs Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		12 - NPDES Industrial Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		13 - Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Type Sizing Criteria

		Staff Use Only

		Credit Amount:

		10% Credit   20% Credit            30% Credit           40% Credit



		General Information



		14 - Fayette County Right of Entry Agreement Utility





		Stormwater Utility - Ordinance 2011-08 Backup4



		Name: 

		Street Address: 

		City ST ZIP Code: 

		Home Phone: 

		EMail Address: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number: 

		Parcel ID Number: 

		Parcel Street Address: 

		City ST ZIP Code_2: 

		Authorized Contact if different than owner: 

		Residential Environmental Technology: Off

		Rain Barrels: Off

		LowImpact Parcel: Off

		Natural Area Preservation: Off

		Noimpact Parcel: Off

		Watershed Stewardship: Off

		Septic Tank Maintenance: Off

		Type or print name: 

		Title or Authority: 

		Date: 

		Stormwater Manager: 

		Date_2: 

		Name_2: 

		Street Address_2: 

		City ST ZIP Code_3: 

		Home Phone_2: 

		EMail Address_2: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_2: 

		Parcel ID Number_2: 

		Parcel Street Address_2: 

		City ST ZIP Code_4: 

		Authorized Contact if different than owner_2: 

		Noimpact Parcel_2: Off

		Natural Area Preservation_2: Off

		Water Resources Education Programs: Off

		NPDES Industrial Permit Compliance: Off

		Water Quality: Off

		Channel Protection: Off

		Overbank Flood Protection: Off

		Extreme Flood Protection: Off

		Type or print name_2: 

		Title or Authority_2: 

		Date_3: 

		Stormwater Manager_2: 

		Date_4: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_3: 

		Cisterns: Off

		Rain gardens: Off

		Pervious Pavement: Off

		Bioretention Areas: Off

		Site Plan: Off

		Structural Design: Off

		Maintenance Schedule: Off

		Installation Date: Off

		undefined: 

		Type or print name_3: 

		Vegetated Green Roof: Off

		Other: Off

		undefined_2: 

		Stormwater Manager_3: 

		Title or Authority_3: 

		Date_5: 

		Date_6: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_4: 

		Site Plan_2: Off

		Structural Design_2: Off

		Maintenance Schedule_2: Off

		Size of Rain Barrels: Off

		Total Number of Downspouts: Off

		Number of Downspouts with Rain Barrels: Off

		Installation Date_2: Off

		undefined_3: 

		undefined_4: 

		undefined_5: 

		undefined_6: 

		Type or print name_4: 

		Title or Authority_4: 

		Date_7: 

		Staff Use Only Credit Amount 10 Credit 20 Credit: 

		10 Credit: Off

		20 Credit: Off

		Stormwater Manager_4: 

		Date_8: 

		Parcel Acreage: Off

		Impervious Area: Off

		Percent Imperviousness: Off

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_5: 

		Submittal Requirements: 

		undefined_7: 

		undefined_8: 

		Type or print name_5: 

		Title or Authority_5: 

		Date_9: 

		Stormwater Manager_5: 

		Date_10: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_6: 

		Parcel Topology Map: Off

		Drains To: Off

		undefined_9: 

		Professional Seal: 

		draindischarge to a Countyowned drainage facility andor system and does not draindischarge to: 

		Customer name print: 

		Stormwater Manager_6: 

		Date_11: 

		Title or Authority_6: 

		Date_12: 

		Date_13: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_7: 

		Earth Day: Off

		Rivers Alive: Off

		AdoptaStream: Off

		Other_2: Off

		Event Application Sheet approved by Stormwater Manager: Off

		Event Certificate of Attendance: Off

		undefined_10: 

		Type or print name_6: 

		Stormwater Manager_7: 

		Title or Authority_7: 

		Date_14: 

		Date_15: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_8: 

		Submittal Requirements_2: 

		Certified Hauler: Off

		Date Maintained: Off

		Documentation including receipts: Off

		undefined_11: 

		Type or print name_7: 

		Title or Authority_8: 

		Date_16: 

		Stormwater Manager_8: 

		Date_17: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_9: 

		Undeveloped land in its natural state: Off

		Federally recognized wetlands: Off

		Lands containing Federally Endangered Species including documentation: Off

		Undeveloped lands within stream buffers andor floodplains: Off

		Constructed stormwater wetlands: Off

		Other_3: Off

		undefined_12: 

		Site Plan_3: Off

		Amount of Area in Preservation: Off

		Documentation Submitted to the Clerks Office: Off

		Page Book: Off

		undefined_13: 

		Page Number: Off

		Type or print name_8: 

		Stormwater Manager_9: 

		undefined_14: 

		Title or Authority_9: 

		Date_18: 

		Date_19: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_10: 

		Approximate Number of Students: Off

		Curriculum Detail Attachment: Off

		undefined_15: 

		Type or print name_9: 

		Title or Authority_10: 

		Date_20: 

		Stormwater Manager_10: 

		Date_21: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_11: 

		Submittal Requirements_3: 

		SIC Code: Off

		Type of Industrial Activity: Off

		Copy of NPDES NOI must have been submitted to the state: Off

		Copy of Stormwater Pollution Protection Plan SWPPP: Off

		Copy of NPDES Annual Report: Off

		undefined_16: 

		Type or print name_10: 

		Stormwater Manager_11: 

		Title or Authority_11: 

		Date_22: 

		Date_23: 

		Stormwater Utility Account Number_12: 

		Water Quality_2: Off

		Channel Protection_2: Off

		Overbank Flood Protection_2: Off

		Extreme Flood Protection_2: Off

		Site Plan_4: Off

		Hydrology Study: Off

		Inspection and Maintenance Plan: Off

		Installation and Maintenance Date: Off

		undefined_17: 

		Type or print name_11: 

		Title or Authority_12: 

		Date_24: 

		10 Credit_2: Off

		20 Credit_2: Off

		30 Credit: Off

		40 Credit: Off

		Stormwater Manager_12: 

		Date_25: 

		the owner andor tenant circle which one or both of the property commonly: 

		Fayette County State of Georgia do hereby grant and give freely and: 

		hereinafter property: 

		day of: 

		20: 

		undefined_18: 








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


August 25, 2011
 7:00P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, August 25, 2011, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Prior to the start of the Commission meeting, Legislative Director Clint Mueller for the Association of County
Commissioners of Georgia recognized Senator Ronnie Chance for the outstanding job he has done representing the
interests of the County Officials who are representing the interests of their constituents.  He presented Senator Chance
with a limited edition print of the State Capital.  


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Presentation/Recognition:
1. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence


in Financial Reporting for both Fayette County’s and Fayette County’s Water System Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010:  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 2


County Administrator Jack Krakeel recognized and the Board presented Chief Finance Officer Mary Holland and
Assistant Finance Director Toni Jo Howard with the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for both Fayette County’s and Fayette County’s Water System Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Public Hearing:
2. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Janata Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a MD Food Mart,


2400 SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia, Mohsin Dhanani, Chotubhai Dhanani, Dilshad Dhanani, Owners, and
Mohsin Dhanani, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 198 of the 13  District, fronts on SRth


138 and SR 314, and is zoned C-C.  This is for a Change of Ownership only:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules for public hearings.  A copy of the rules, identified as
“Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He remarked that the
applicants had contacted him and said that they would not be present for the hearing tonight.  


Commissioner Brown interjected that anyone wishing to speak in favor or in opposition to item nos. 2, 3 or 4 listed under
the Public Hearing section of the agenda, did not need to sign up prior to the meeting.  He said anyone who wished to
speak on this item could do so.  


Chairman Frady asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of this petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to
speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the packaged beer and wine license for Janata Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a
MD Food Mart, 2400 SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The motion carried
5-0.


3. Consideration of the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20.
Zoning Ordinance, Article VI. District Use Requirements Sec. 6-25. Planned Unit Development, F.
Planned Retreat or Lodge and Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-8 Street Frontage for Access.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed this item with the Board.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said this item had
previously been discussed with the Board regarding amendments to the Zoning Ordinance for the Planned Retreat and
Lodge.  He said global changes had been made to the Zoning Ordinance in December 2010 and staff was unaware that
this resulted in conflicting regulations.  He pointed out that a project had been presented to staff which resulted in a
review of this zoning district.  He said it had not been used since 1978 and needed to be updated to meet the needs of
handling rezonings.  He reviewed the proposed amendments with the Board.  He noted that as a result of this review,
staff noticed that there was a cell tower in the middle of this property that was approved and permitted under the County,
and as a result staff had included that cell towers will be allowed in this zoning district under the provisions of Article V.
He remarked that staff had also discussed the buffer requirement for 150 feet.  He said when staff had looked at similar
uses such as private schools and churches, the buffer requirement was much less.  He said staff was proposing to
reduce the buffer down to 75 feet as well as the provision that this buffer could be increased in certain situations relating
to any PUD request that might be submitted.  He said transportation vehicle paths or driveways or multi-use paths would
be fine within the buffer as well.  He said a minor change had been made to Article V regarding property owners
association and homeowners association.  He said he would be glad to answer any questions.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 3


Commissioner Brown asked for clarification regarding the property owners association and the homeowners association.
He asked if there were different business entities or nonprofit entities that were on a piece of property in relation to this
ordinance, would that also include something akin to a merchants association where a developer has several merchants
located on a piece of property.


Mr. Frisina replied that this would allow the construction of a private street and provide the option of gating it or
controlling access but the street would still have to be maintained.  He said the covenants would require everybody
located within the development who are sharing the private road would be responsible through the covenants that they
would be responsible for maintaining the street.  He said this would include nonprofits and this was the reason property
owners association was included.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if the infrastructure for fire hydrants would be required and Mr. Frisina said this would be
treated the same as with any other development.  Mr. Frisina said a PUD would give flexibility in zoning but not flexibility
in the other standards.  


Commissioner Hearn clarified that a project would have to consist of a minimum of 50 acres to be considered for this
and the density was one single family unit for each ten net acres of the development.  


Chairman Frady asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of this petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to
speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI. District Use Requirements Sec. 6-25. Planned Unit Development, F. Planned
Retreat or Lodge and Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-8 Street Frontage for Access.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Ordinance No. 2011-07, identified as “Attachment No. 5",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


4. Third Public Hearing on proposed 2011 Property Tax Millage Rates.  Following the conclusion of the
hearing, the Board will consider the adoption of Resolution No. 2011-13 which establishes ad valorem
tax millage rates for 2011:


Chief Finance Officer Mary Holland presented this item for discussion.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  Ms. Holland said this was the third
meeting for public hearings for consideration of the 2011 millage rates. She said the Board would be considering
Resolution No. 2011-13 at the end of this public hearing for adoption.  She said information was also included in the
Board’s packet in regard to counties in the Class A government size as well as a couple of other surrounding counties
to Fayette County.  She said every year staff prepares a comparison of what the millage rates are in those counties and
do a comparison of the change from last year as well as rank those within the counties.  She said there were 18 counties
listed in the Class A government and last year Fayette County ranked 16 out of 18 counties in regard to the total millage
rate.  She said this year, depending on what Carroll County does, Fayette County could end up being 15  or 16  out ofth th


18.  She further remarked that the recommended rates for the general fund is 5.645 mills and that was an increase over
last year of $0.245.  She said the rate for the emergency 911 operations center is new this year and that was 0.207 mills.
She remarked that there was an increase in fire services of $0.509 to bring that rate to 2.500 mills.  She remarked that
there was a slight reduction in EMS operations and that was -$.0908 and that would bring that rate to 0 .450 mills.  She
said these are the rates presented to the Board for consideration as well as included in Resolution No. 2011-13.  She
said the Board would need to take action in regard to setting the millage rate for the Fayette County School Board.  She







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 4


said the School Board had adopted their rates and those were included in the Resolution as well.  She said she would
be glad to answer any questions.  


Chairman Frady interjected that the Board of Commissioners did not have anything to do with the School Board’s mill
rate except to adopt it.  


Chairman Frady asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the proposed 2011 property tax millage rates.  Hearing
none, he asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition.  


Pat Earnest: Pat Earnest remarked that food prices were rising as well as clothing, utility costs, healthcare costs, and
gasoline prices.  She said the only thing that wasn’t going up was the value on her property.  She said in the last three
years her property value had dropped tens of thousands of dollars and yet this Board was proposing an increase in her
taxes.  She said she lived on a very modest fixed income and no possibility of a year end bonus or cost of living increase.
She said her mother has Alzheimers and lived in a facility in Morrow and she had moved her 96 year old father in with
her last October.  She said she would be happy for any of the Commissioners to sit down with her and go through her
check book and show her where she could make more cutbacks.  She said her situation was not unique and she knew
dozens of families who are struggling.  She pleaded with the Board to look at this issue again before property taxes were
raised.  She said she could not afford a property tax increase, a 911 tax increase, or a stormwater management tax
increase.  She said the citizens are drowning and these citizens need a lifeline from the Board.  


Gordon Furr: Gordon Furr said the last thing that should be going on would be the County raising taxes.  He asked the
Board why HB 240 couldn’t be used to keep from raising raises.  He agreed with Ms. Earnest that these are hard times
and the West Fayetteville Bypass could be stopped and use that money so taxes would not have to be raised.  


David Hall: David Hall said he was not in favor of Resolution No. 2011-13 adopting the millage rate and he asked the
Board not to adopt it tonight.  He said he did not want millage rates to be raised due to the low property values.  He said
he did not think the citizens should be punished for things that are not their responsibility.  He said the West Fayetteville
Bypass was lowering property values as it is being constructed.  He felt this Board should talk to the Fayette County
School Board about closing down some of the eight empty elementary schools.  He said there were some easy ways
to make up for the taxes that are lost.  He said that would be to use HB 240 and quit spending money on the West
Fayetteville Bypass which the majority of citizens do not want. He said the answer was not to raise taxes but to use the
tax money already collected more wisely.  He said he was opposed to the adoption of the millage rates as presented
tonight for 2011.


Ginga Smithfield: Ginga Smithfield said she was sure everyone in Fayette County would agree that the economy was
in very poor condition.  She said when money is tight, responsible people cut back on expenses that are necessities.
She said the Fayette County taxpayers have not seen any evidence of the Commissioners trying to cut expenses.  She
said all the citizens have seen is county officials spending millions of dollars and now they are asking for more.  She
remarked that spending almost $90,000 on paving a gravel road with only two homes on it was not a necessity.  She
said she had lived on a gravel road for almost thirty years and there were six homes located on it.  She said during that
time, not one homeowner on her street had ever asked the taxpayers to pave this road.  She said sat in this very room
and listened to the Commissioners discuss how a developer had called and said they would develop the property on this
$90,000 road if the County would pave it.  She said the taxpayers are not paving the road.  She said the $8 million
roundabout in Fayetteville was not a necessity. She said giving County pay raises at the end of 2010 was not a
necessity.  She said last, but by no means least when tens of millions of dollars was spent on the West Fayetteville
Bypass by no stretch of the imagination could that be called a necessity.  She said the West Fayetteville expenditures
could be directed toward better purposes by utilizing HB 240, however some of the Commissioners have a such strong







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 5


ties to the West Fayetteville Bypass that was more important to them than balancing the county budget.  She said all
of these expenditures had come about as hundreds and hundreds of homes are going into foreclosure in Fayette County.
She pointed out that the population in Fayette County was shrinking and that had been evidenced this past week by
statistics from the School System.  She said student enrollment was down by 787 students and that was enough to fill
an entire school.  She said the School Board was considering a middle school and two elementary schools and were
considering switching to a four day school week.  She said the School Board dug the hole that they are in by building
schools they couldn’t fill and buying property that they couldn’t sell.  She said this Commission is digging a hole that we
will never be able to climb out of.  She said home values have declined because of the economy yet this Commission
wants to raise taxes on devalued homes.  She said 94% of Fayette businesses will be impacted by a large tax increase.
She said she had continually seen this Commission ignore suggestions of having bids for all outsourced services.  She
felt all engineering and landscaping services should have bids submitted and evaluated.  She said after all is said and
done, this Commission continued to spend and ask for more money.  She said this Commission also drafted an
ordinance that will limit public participation within the local government process.  She said she could not see where any
of this would instill public confidence in county officials.  


Tom Waller: Tom Waller said the request for an increase in this year’s millage rate was not a surprise.  He said he did
not believe the Administrator had requested each department to provide a 2% or 5% decrement list from those
departments if it was necessary for them to live within the amount of funding that they got last year.  He said, on the
contrary, staff counted on raising the millage rate on property and noted that property values have decreased.  He said
a lot of citizens were living on fixed incomes and they would make their voice heard in the next election.


Randy Ognio: Randy Ognio asked the Board to take notice as to the people speaking in favor of the millage increase
and those people speaking in opposition.  He said he had not heard one person speak in favor of this increase.  He also
expressed concern with the E-911 tax district as well as a new stormwater fee.  He said between the local, State and
Federal government, he was not able to keep any of his money.  He said the School Board had driven the county in a
hole and now this Commission was doing the same thing.  


Nancy Giertych: Nancy Giertych said she realized the School Board was not the County Commission’s issue but it does
impact the citizens.  She said the citizens of Fayette County are taxed to death and she was very upset over the
situation.  She questioned the new tax district for E-911 and said as a resident of Peachtree City she would now be
double taxed.  She asked the Board for consideration to use the West Fayetteville Bypass funds to reduce other taxes
or prevent taxes from increasing.  She said the citizens were already being taxed to death by the School Board and she
asked the Board to consider reducing taxes.  


Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield discussed two ways to use SPLOST funds that were wasted on the West Fayetteville
Bypass.  A copy of his remarks, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and made an official part hereof.
He said there was an ongoing petition regarding the County’s budget shortfall and Commissioners looking to raise
property taxes in order to make up for the shortfall.  He said HB 240 would be another option and would allow the citizens
to vote to use the SPLOST funds to cover County expenses so taxes would not have to be raised.  He said he had
intended to turn in this petition before now but there are over 600 names with more and more citizens from all parts of
Fayette County wanting to sign it.  He remarked that according to the SPLOST guide for County Commissioners the
following provisos relating to the usage of SPLOST funds to divert culvert repairs can be found in the SPLOST guide
on page 10 under Stormwater and Drainage.  He said the 2004 SPLOST was dedicated toward road, street and bridge
purposes.  He said the petition signatures acquired so far are proof of the unpopularity of the West Fayette Bypass and
extend throughout the entire county.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 6


David Barlow: David Barlow remarked that there had been an increased interest in the Board of Commissioners over
the last few years, and this had originated out of a public distrust and a yearning to save this community.  He said County
revenues had gone down during the last several years but the Smith administration and the majority of this present Board
chose to proceed on a course of deficit budgeting no better than the U.S. Congress.  He not only did the three member
majority of this Board adopt the budget where expenditures exceeded revenues, but additional expenditures were also
created to make matters worse.  He said the citizens were going to be paying for the WIC program twice – first with
Federal taxes and again with County taxes.  He said the citizens are also paying for the East Fayetteville Bypass twice
firstly with the local sales tax funds and soon with the regional sales tax funds.  He remarked that this Board was also
hurrying to waste tens of millions of tax dollars on building the West Fayetteville Bypass that no one wants except the
real estate developers.  He said if the County government was a private corporation, it would be bankrupt in just a few
years because of bad decision making.  Nearly everyone in this audience tonight as well as throughout the County have
the impression that three of the Commissioners on this Board like to run lose with taxpayers’ dollars.  He said the
unbalanced budgets, pet projects such as the West Fayetteville Bypass, voting to keep Fayette County in the regional
mass transit plans and the thoughtless proposals like the 2009 SPLOST referendum prove that point very clearly.  He
noted that Commissioner Brown had developed a serious proposal for reducing expenses and shifting funds through
HB 240 and this Board would not even allow him the courtesy of speaking.  He said the citizens of Fayette County are
watching and waiting to vote in the 2012 election.  He said everyone should expect an extreme make over of the Fayette
County Board of Commissioners.  


Hearing no further comments in opposition, Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2011-13 which establishes ad valorem tax millage rates
for 2011.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.  


Commissioner Brown remarked that he wanted to make some points that are pertinent to this conversation.  He felt a
much larger view needed to be taken than just what the millage rate was going to cost the average homeowner.  His
points are as follows:


Commissioner Brown made the following points: (1) Fayette County’s unemployment is the highest percentage in the
last 20 years; (2) The county government is engaged in deficit budgeting and spending; (3) According to the latest
Consumer Distress Index, the State of Georgia is the fifth worst in the United States (AJC, Aug. 18, 2011); (4) The U.S.
Commerce Department data has “spurred forecasters to cut projections for U.S. growth for the second half of the year
and beyond,” (Wall Street Journal, Aug. 23, 2011); (5) This past July’s one percent decrease in home buying puts this
year on the pace to be the “worst numbers in half a century.”  Georgia is the fourth worst in the U.S. for the rate of homes
facing foreclosure (AJC, Aug. 24, 2011); (6) 87.8 percent of Fayette County homeowners lost significant value in their
homes; (7) Our county’s commercial and industrial base – what remains of it – is getting hit with a considerable tax
increase at the very same time they are trying to hold back on laying off employees or just keeping their doors open; (8)
Three members of our Board killed my attempt at forming a committee to utilize HB 240 in an effort to better prioritize
our government spending and stave–off tax increases and deficit spending.  We had better bring out the defibrillator and
attempt to revive the HB 240 discussion and see if we can get our fiscal pulse back; (9) The fact that we are still
constructing the expensive West Fayetteville Bypass, an unwarranted road, while people within our county who were
once secure and are now going to charities to get financial assistance to pay their bills; and the county going to raise
their taxes is incomprehensible to me; (10) The county does not even bid out simply stuff like grass cutting contracts,
so why shouldn’t local taxpayers be angry?; (11) To all the local business owners who see us wasting precious tax
dollars on projects like the West Fayetteville Bypass that have no impact on our current traffic situation while your taxes
get hiked, please know that two of us tried to put things into perspective, but were voted down; (12) The county is going
to spend almost $9 million on a roundabout in Fayetteville at Mayor Steele’s request – a project that was not even in the







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 7


2004 SPLOST – at the pinnacle moment when our citizens are hurting the most.  This is unbelievable; (13) There is no
compassion, no vision and no leadership on this one.  A copy of his remarks, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.    


Commissioner Brown urged the Board to take a closer look at HB 240.  He said there was still a chance that something
could be done with that if it was brought back up for discussion.  He felt this would be in the County’s best interest.  He
said he hoped the Board had a change of heart on this one.  He said he was aware that he might lose another vote and
it would be a 3-2 vote but something needed to be done about this.  He said he had written several columns in the local
newspaper on the School Board detailing all of the things that had occurred.  He said that situation was an absolute
disaster and the County was heading in the same direction if it wasn’t careful.  


Commissioner Horgan remarked that the County has not had any kind of a tax increase during the last five years.  He
said Fayette County was a futuristic county with high standards.  He said by not having this small tax increase now would
be “keeping our heads in the sand” and not looking into the future.  He commented on the new roundabout that the City
of Fayetteville had built and noted that was their money to do with it as they pleased.  He felt the roundabout was a great
improvement to the traffic in this community.  He said the issue of the E-911 tax was an issue brought up by the cities
who felt there was an inequity of taxation.  He said this agreement had been reviewed and approved by all of the councils
of every municipality.  He said he realized the small tax increase was hard but he felt it was the right thing to do right now
to keep County standards high.  He said he was in agreement with this increase.


Commissioner McCarty commented on the large number of homes being repossessed in Fayette County.  He pointed
out that there were 85 plus homes being sold because of back taxes.  He said he was not in favor of any fees or taxes
to be increased at this time.  He said at some point in time this might need to be done but now was not the time to do
it.  


Commissioner Hearn commented on the E-911 tax.  He said the cities had approached the County and asked for
consideration for the E-911 millage rate.  He said in the past the cities had been paying the 911 tax out of their general
fund and the County had been paying 911 fees out of its general fund.  He said the citizens in Peachtree City would pay
the 911 fees for the County and they would also pay 911 fees included in their city taxes.  He said by having this millage
rate thee would be across the board unilateral millage rate that everybody would pay and the citizens in Peachtree City,
Tyrone and Fayetteville would have to pay double.  He said he would challenge anyone to sit through next year’s budget
meetings with every department head line by line and every dollar that is spent.  He said he felt the millage increase was
the right thing to do and it would allow the County to provide services here in Fayette County.


The motion carried 3-2 with Commissioner Brown and Commissioner McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of Resolution
No. 2011-13, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Public Comment:
Executive Assistant Carol Chandler read the rules for the public comment section of the agenda.  A copy of the rules
for public comment, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Frady asked Ms. Chandler to read the names of the individuals who had signed up to speak under public
comment.  


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop said he had lived on Westbridge Road for thirty-six years.  He said he had heard rumors that
a new bridge was going to be built as well as a new road.  He said he had called the County for someone to come out
and look at the roadway.  He said Jack Krakeel and Phil Mallon had come out to discuss his idea of straightening the







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 8


roadway thus eliminating the two curves.  He remarked that there had been a lot of accidents on this road as a result
of these curves and a lot of people had died.  He said these curves needed to be fixed and Mr. Krakeel and Mr. Mallon
agreed with him and thought his idea was a good one.  He said they indicated that the water main would not have to be
moved and no money would have to be spent for that.  He said he had spoken with Mr. Mallon in March, and Mr. Mallon
indicated that there was no money in the budget.  He said the new plan would still have the two curves and the easement
would come within 30 feet of his front door and the pavement 60 feet from his door and he was under the impression
that the zoning was for 100 feet.  He questioned if the County was exempt from this requirement.  He said he was sure
that no one would want this road coming within 60 feet of their front door and the highway being open 24 hours and 7
days a week.  He said he was also going to have a new guard rail all the way across his front yard.  He asked that the
curve and the ridge be left the way it was now and for the County to wait until there was enough money.  He said it had
been alright for the last thirty-six years and no one had been interested in it.  He said he had  watched the traffic today,
and there were over 200 cars that went by in less than an hour, 6 school buses, 14 pickup trucks with trailers pulling lawn
mowers, and 3 garbage trucks.  He said this was a very busy road but he felt the County had gotten its way and the
highway.  He asked the Board for consideration to do the right thing and table this matter until there was enough money
to do it the right way.  


Dennis Chase:   Mr. Chase expressed concern with any kind of additional fees for stormwater being placed on citizens
during a very difficult economy.  He said Stormwater Director Vanessa Birrell had been very clear when he asked her
if there was something that was not being done by the stormwater department right now and she said the County was
meeting the minimum requirements of the State as set before us.  He said the County was about to increase the budget
of the stormwater department by 300% to 500% at a time when the citizens are facing opposite issues.  He said when
this issue comes before the Board, there would need to be some real solid reasons for having a stormwater utility.


David Hall: David Hall said this time reminds him of a past time when the people who held office were like the citizens
in the audience.  He said this Board of Commissioners could not put their interests above the interests of Fayette County.
He said the citizens of Fayette County make Fayette County what it is.  He said there were natural consequences to the
building of the West Fayetteville Bypass and the increase in the Millage rates rather than choosing other solutions that
would be far better and far safer for the fiscality of Fayette County.  He asked the Board to work with the citizens so that
the County could prosper and everybody be winners.  He said he would support David Barlow for the Chairman’s post.
He said one day he also intended to run for this Board.  He said he loved Fayette County and he wanted things to be
done that were right.  He said he was tired of citizens’ rights being violated.  


Randy Ognio: Randy Ognio commented on consent agenda item no. 9 regarding modification of the Backflow
Containment Policy to allow testing on backflow preventers that are not performed by the owners of the backflow
preventers and then bill the owners.  He asked why this was being modified when some of the backflow preventors were
not the County’s.  He also commented on consent agenda no. 11 regarding Ordinance No. 2011-06.  He said it appeared
that the Board was enforcing that Ordinance today when it was not properly passed at the last Board meeting.  He said
if it was passed at the last Board meeting, then it would not be on the agenda tonight to reaffirm.  He said the Ordinance
was not posted properly, not numbered and the motion was not made correctly to vote on it, and now it still has the date
of the last Board meeting of August 11, 2011 on it as the adoption date. He said this Board was trying to enforce an
Ordinance that was not passed properly and this Board should allow anyone who raises their hand tonight to be allowed
to speak.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 9


Tom Waller: Tom Waller commented on the paving of Sandy Creek Road and Flat Creek Trail.  He said in his opinion
neither of these roads needed to be repaved.  He felt County money was not being spent wisely.  He said he did not
know the criteria for repaving but during the last year he had never seen a presentation by staff as to specific roads that
were going to be paved.  He said the final decision of any road should come to this Board for a decision.  He said roads
did not need to be repaved in order to just spend money.  He said it is coming across to the citizens that this Board is
just spending money.  


Denese Ognio: Denese Ognio asked the Board to review Ordinance No. 2011-06 which addresses the procedures,
decorum and rules of order used for conducting County Commission meetings.  She said she worked in Newnan and
was not able to get here 15 minutes early to sign up for public comment.  She said she would appreciate the opportunity
to speak especially if she was late in arriving to the Board meeting.  She asked the Board to look at this Ordinance again
and realize that a lot of citizens do care and would like to be able to speak up about issues.  She said she had arrived
at the meeting tonight at 7:01 p.m.  She also commented on something she saw in the local newspaper that caused her
great concern regarding a national group of atheists who have asked one of the other County organizations to not have
only Christian prayers.  She said she was asking this Board to be prepared because this issue will come to this Board
and it was a matter of time.  She said we are a Nation under God and we are a Christian Nation and she urged the Board
when this comes up to be prepared to discuss this and stand behind the fact that we are one Nation under God and only
have prayers and invocations of that.  She also noted that there were zero people who stood up and spoke tonight in
favor of the millage rate.  She said she hoped Commissioner Hearn’s statement that Fayette County was not a business
was on the front page of the newspaper.  She remarked that Fayette County was a business. 


Consent Agenda: Commissioner Brown requested consent item nos. 11 and 12 be removed for discussion.
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent item nos. 5-13 with the exception of consent item nos. 11 and
12.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Finance Department  - Adoption of Policy No. 300.07:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Policy No. 300.07 which amends the County’s Reserve Fund


Policy in compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54.  A copy
of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


Sheriff’s Office - Funding for Vehicle Replacement Project:
6. Consideration of Sheriff’s Office request to provide additional funding to complete Vehicle Replacement Project


1323A by $8,997.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 12"“, follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.  


Emergency Services - Memorandum of Understanding regarding Atlanta Regional Evacuation Plan:
7. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between Fayette County Emergency Management and the Fayette


County Board of Education for the use of Sandy Creek High School for the Atlanta Regional Evacuation Plan
Evacuee Transfer Point; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said MOU pending the County
Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.  


Tax Assessor’s Office - Disposition of Tax Refund Requests:
8. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the disposition of tax refund requests submitted by taxpayers in


accordance with O.C.G.A. 48-5-380.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 14",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 10


Water Committee - Modification of the Backflow Containment Policy:
9. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to approve modification of the Backflow Containment


Policy.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


Water System - Ratification of Board’s action on August 11  regarding the Waterline Extensions:th


10. Ratification of the Board’s action on August 11 to award the annual contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal
Year 2012 to the low bidder, Lantz Construction, in the amount of $765,355; and to authorize the Chairman to
execute said contract, pending review by the County Attorney.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
No. 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Consent Agenda Items #11 and #12 were removed for discussion:
Commissioners - Reconsideration of Ordinance No. 2011-06:
11. Reconsideration of Ordinance No.  2011-06 which addresses the procedures, decorum, and rules of order used


for conducting County Commission meetings.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Commissioners - Adoption of Ordinance No. 2011-06 regarding procedures, decorum, and rules or order for
County Commission meetings:
12. Approval of staff’s request that the Board reaffirm adoption of Ordinance No. 2011-06 which addresses the


procedures, decorum, and rules of order used for conducting County Commission meetings.  A copy of the
request and Ordinance No. 2011-06, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


Commissioner Brown expressed concern with the sign in requirement prior to a meeting for public comment. He said
he had watched the clock from 7:00 p.m. on and eleven citizens came in the door after the hour of 7:00 p.m.  He said
he had a real problem with the sign up time frame.  He felt someone might be speeding to get here on time and cause
danger to themselves and someone else.  He said he wanted this to be recorded in the record.  He said he finds specific
portions of this ordinance to be arbitrary and capricious.  He said the only reason he was going to vote in favor of this
Ordinance tonight was because the County ordinances were written in such a way that he would have to vote in favor
of it so that he could bring this issue back later to make changes to it.  He said if he was on the losing end of the vote,
he would not have the ability to bring it back to make changes to it.  He said he was going to vote in favor of this
Ordinance even though he opposed it and he wanted to make this clear in the record.  He said it was his intention that
if he could gain a third vote, it would come back and it would subsequently changed.  


Commissioner Hearn said he would not have a problem with including call ins to the Clerk’s Office prior to a meeting.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that pursuant to several requests regarding the ability to be heard on the
part of citizens, staff has been researching the feasibility of being able to do that electronically.  He said if someone was
at work and knew they might be late, they could log on the County’s website and sign up for Public Comment and staff
would a record of the request electronically.  He said staff feels that they have found a solution for this to occur and it
will take approximately a month to get it implemented.  He said staff hoped by mid September that there would be an
electronic capability for anybody who is not able to attend the meeting to where they could log on and sign up.  He said
he recognizes the fact that this would not address somebody who might be home and not have computer access or
capability but it should help to bridge at least the capability of being heard.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 11


Commissioner Brown said he was wondering why this was being done in the first place.  He said he could not figure out
why it was even necessary.  He said he understands the ability to write something down so that there could be a proper
name in the minutes record.  He questioned why citizens could not just come to the meetings, raise their hands and go
to the podium to speak.  He said he did not understand what the whole issue was other than to control speech because
someone has to list specifically what they wanted to talk about.  He said should the conversation or tone of the meeting
change in some way, then that person would be prohibited from speaking on the subject other than the one listed.


Commissioner Horgan interjected that Commissioner Brown was incorrect in saying that and noted that requirement had
not been included in the code.  He said a citizen wanting to speak under Public Comment just has to list their name and
address and could speak on any topic.


Executive Assistant Carol Chandler agreed with Commissioner Horgan and stated that there was an agreement among
the Board to take out the requirement that a citizen must list a topic. She said the Board had also taken out the 15 minute
limitation for sign in prior to a meeting.  


Commissioner Brown said he definitely does not understand why this was being done.


Chairman Frady said he understood that there might be two or three ordinances floating around and he ask County
Attorney Scott Bennett to comment on this.


County Attorney Scott Bennett remarked that there had been some questions after the meeting about what was attached
to the agenda and what was not attached to the agenda.  He said staff felt it was best to redo it so that it was clear as
to all of the changes that were incorporated.  


Commissioner Brown said he still did not understand why this was being done if the only thing required by the Board
was for the citizen to sign in on the sign in sheet located at the podium.  He said he did not understand why citizen had
to sign up in advance.


Commissioner Horgan interjected this would allow for an orderly meeting.  He said lately there had been a lot of hands
being raised and sometimes people aren’t noticed.  He felt this was a great way to make sure everybody has an
opportunity to say something.


Commissioner Brown expressed concern with citizens arriving after 7:00 p.m. and not being able to speak.  


Chairman Frady said this would be a routine where citizens can call in and if they are five minutes late, they could still
speak because their name would be on the list.  He felt everyone should just wait and see what happens.


Commissioner Horgan felt citizens also have a responsibility to be some place on time.


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s please on these two items.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda item nos. 11 and 12 as presented.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown said he wanted to comment in regard to Commissioner Horgan’s last comment.  He said he really
takes offense to Commissioner Horgan saying that people should be here on time.  He said he was sure that Mrs. Ognio
planned on being at the meeting by 7:00 p.m. but no one would be able to control the traffic signals, traffic levels or traffic







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 12


accidents.  He said he really takes exception to the fact that the burden was going to be placed on the citizens even
though circumstances beyond their control may not allow them to arrive at the meeting by 7:00 p.m.  He said if citizens
were here before the Public Comments begin, then citizens should be allowed to speak.


Commissioner Horgan reminded Commissioner Brown that Mrs. Ognio said she did not have the opportunity to sign the
sheet but she thought that she had signed in.  He said this Board still allowed her to speak.  He said the Board was doing
this to be restrictive but to keep something in order.  He said it was not the intention of this Board to keep people from
speaking.


Hearing no further comments, Chairman Frady called for the vote.


The motion carried 5-0.  


Minutes:  
13. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on August 3, 2011 and August 11, 2011. 


Old Business:
14. Consideration of staff’s request to approve Contract Addendum No. 1 (Proposal P764) with Jacobs


Engineering Group, Inc. authorizing expenditures not-to-exceed $19,800 to complete data collection and
design for the Phase I Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas Mile Road Southside Landfill;
and authorization for the Chairman to sign said contract:


Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell asked for the Board’s consideration to approve staff’s request for
a Contract Addendum No. 1 (Proposal P764) with Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. for work to continue on Phase I of
the Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas Mile Road Southside Landfill.  She said this contract was in an
amount not-to-exceed $19,800 and these funds are available in the Solid Waste fund balance.  A copy of the request
and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Horgan asked Ms. Birrell how much the County spends on Methane Remediation each year.  Ms. Birrell
replied that this was something new and to date if the Board approved this it would be for $19,800 for the remediation.
She said the County spends approximately $25,000 to $30,000 on methane monitoring every year.  


Commissioner Brown asked if this was an Addendum to a current contract that the County has with Jacobs Engineering
that was put out to bid and Ms. Birrell replied yes.  Commissioner Brown remarked that there had been discussion about
venting the Methane.  He asked if collection and reuse of Methane had been discussed and Ms. Birrell replied yes.
Commissioner Brown asked why this was not being done and Ms. Birrell replied this was because of the age of the
Landfill and there not being enough Methane to make it profitable to do that.  


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Contract Addendum No. 1 (Proposal P764) with Jacobs Engineering
Group, Inc. authorizing expenditures not-to-exceed $19,800 to complete data collection and design for the Phase I
Methane Remediation Plan for the First Manassas Mile Road Southside Landfill and authorization for the Chairman to
execute the contract.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the contract,
identified as “Attachment No. 20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 13


New Business:
15. Consideration of a request for support of efforts to establish a “Certified Literate Community” Program


in Fayette County; and authorization for the Chairman to execute Resolution No. 2011-14: 


County Administrator Jack Krakeel introduced sponsors of the “Certified Literate Community” Program in Fayette County
including Judy Cook Snider and Beth Brooks.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 21",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said approximately one month ago he had the sponsors
of this program contact him regarding adult literacy education and a program that they are attempting to bring to Fayette
County through Southern Crescent Technical College in conjunction with the Fayette County Board of Education.  He
said the sponsors of this program are asking consideration by the Board of Commissioners to adopt a Resolution to help
support and create a certified literate community in Fayette County.  He said it was estimated that there are more than
3,000 individuals in this community that are not literate. 


Adult Education Instructor Judy Cook Snider for Southern Crescent Technical College remarked that it was their desire
to create a “Certified Literate Community” Program in Fayette County.  She noted that there are 62 such programs in
the State of Georgia and Fayette County would be 63.  She said it was their goal to decrease the rate of illiteracy in
Fayette County.  She asked for the Board’s consideration in this matter.


Chairman Frady said this was a wonderful program for Fayette County and he thanked them for this effort.


Commissioner Brown made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2011-14 supporting efforts to establish a “Certified Literate
Community” Program in Fayette County and authorization for the Chairman to execute the Resolution.  Commissioner
Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Resolution NO. 2011-14, identified as “Attachment No.
22", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Administrator’s Reports:
None.


Commissioners Reports:
Commissioner Steve Brown:  Commissioner Brown remarked that the State Legislature had dropped all plans to move
the date of the 2012 Transportation referendum in the Special Session.  He said he wanted to thank all of the citizens
who phoned, faxed, and got in touch with elected representatives who were overwhelmed by the response.  He said he
was proud of Fayette County for getting involved at the State level.  He said he was extremely concerned about what
he called the “MARTA Republicans” along with Governor Deal and Atlanta Mayor Reed and the Metro Chamber of
Commerce seem to be wanting to change the rules on the 2012 Transportation referendum.  He said another Legislative
Session would begin in January, 2012 and the date could be changed in that Session as well.  He urged everyone to
be vigilant and make sure that when the Session opens in January that everyone was making those same phone calls,
faxes and same requests .  He said it was absolutely essential that this be done.


Chairman Herb Frady: Chairman Frady remarked that there would be a Transportation Investment Act Community
Open House by representatives of the Atlanta Regional Commission here in the Public Meeting Room at the
Administrative Complex Tuesday, September 20, 2011 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.


County Attorney Scott Bennett:  County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss a litigation
matter.   







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 25, 2011


Page 14


Executive Session: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss a litigation matter.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Chairman Frady reconvened the meeting at this time.  Commissioner Brown made a motion to authorize the Chairman
to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that a legal matter was discussed.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No. 23", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Adjournment: Commissioner Brown made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:49 p.m.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                                                    Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 22  day of September, 2011.nd


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk












����������������������������
�����������		
��
����
�����������	����������


����������


������������	�������
�������
� ���� �!
��	�
� �������!�����"������
� �#�"��
�����"$��%��
������&&&���"�������" �� �'�����
�(����)�����������		
��
����*���!�
)�����"���		
��
�����
� �*�����������&��!�
�������
������+!���
��	�
� �������
� �
���
��������!����


�����������������������
+!������������		
��
��������#�"��������"��,�� 
���	��
��-��
�
������
���������	����������������������	�

���!�����
����
� �.��	�����!�#�"��������"���	
�
�����
'���	��/���0������&�����'����#�"��'
����,�� 
��


��		�

�����
���
���� 1���#���"���!�
�	��
.�����1�� ����2
���!�
�	��
��'����&�
3�1���
�����������"


��������
���� 4��(�5��(��������"���	
�
�������
������������������"�������"
#��"��3��4������!
��6���"����(
5��������"���!
��6���"����(


��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������������


�!�
�	���#���"��������!����	�����������%��(�!�����
� �������������������	�


�������������������


��		
��
�������&��	�'������	�'������ ����
�	���!���&��)���������'����"��!������*�������!��	�'��� ���

�	�������!��������!��/��� �����"���!�����+!�����"�	�
� ����������������!��	�
��������!�� ������
����
�!������		
��
����������"���������!�	��
�����7���
�����
��������&����+!�	��
�����
����8��&
�!��!�
�	��
#���"��2
�8�!�
�	���1�� ����������		
��
����1����'��
� �
�������
�
�����


��		
��
����1����	�'������������!�� �����������
�!������		
��
����1�� �����������!�	��
�����+!
	��
����������8��&
�!���		
��
�������&��������		
��
����������"�'��
� �
�������
�
���







������

�����	������ !!
������	����


�"#�#�$�$%��&"#��'�%$%���


!� ������	������������(��������	���!�)�*�� !!�
+���
��������,��-��.�/���������/0�


+!���������� �
9���!�&(�������	�����8������������)�����
���
���%(�
��#�"��������"�*��2
�8
�!�
�	��� 1�� ��� ���� �!� ������	��
���� � �!�
�&�	��� ��� �����  �'� �!� ������ �� ���
�
���� ��
�����
��
�������!��������!�6�� !��������!��	�
����.'����
����������"�����!��:�����������	��
�������
���
�
�����
���
�
�����)�����!	����;�������&��!��	
������������	���������
�
��������!����


�123%�����#�$�


�����4��5���������������
��5��!����
��������
�������5�����1
����
�����!����
�"�����(��������!������'��
��������!������(�����������
� �
����<$�����!��
9��
��������
�����������&��������������.���������!�&��!��!�� !�
�!�����������
��������	��"�&
�!��!������"$����&�����
������!���&���
�����������!����
	����!��!�� !���!������'��
�!��������'�������
����'������1
 !&����+�&���&!����!����
	������	
����������������
���
���&
�!�#�"��
�����"����!����(�������!�&���<���
������	���!������"$���:�
�	�����������(���!�����������'
&��!��
����
��
�������������!����������
�������!�������&��������������.�������!��������"���(
� ��!�����������������
���
�������
�!����������
��������������&�����:�
��������!�����!��� !��!�����
��1��
� ��������


��������������������������������
� �1
 !&����+�&������
��!�!��������!������������!������
� �����=��
� $�
�������!�&'���!��!�� !��
��&���)������������
���������!�����	
���(�!������	����
����!��������������&�
���
������������!����!�#������
�
����	������
����
���������	
�����*��1�/���
����!���&!
���!��:�
�	��������
#������
�
���
���	�"��������
(����	������!�
���
�"��
��
�'��'��������
����������!����:�
������
�"
� ���	��
������!��
����	���"�
������������	
���������
���
���&
�!
����>��
��
��
�����1�����
�����!����"�����&
� �����	���"���������
&
�!��!����������
����&!����������!�'���#������
�
������!������"�&����&���
� ��!�&��(��������	���"��!��

����
�����"��
��������	��"�&
�!��!����
�������1�������!���
����	��
�������!�����
���
���&���	���
���"�
��������
�����!���
���!��������
����	��
���!���������'
�����!�����
���
���&���������!�'���������'����1���������"
� 
�!��&���'������!��
������!���&����������
�������!�����!�
	��������&������������
���!������"�����&�����
	
�
	������	
�����������������!�������������������	�(���
�
������!���!������"�&����������������������������"
����������&������
���
����������������
���
����
�'��'
� ��!������
� �����=��
� �6����	����


$�	,�����������+�	�%������!�������������(����
� �����
����		���


���6��	��5�������������'��	
�!�
�������'���!����!��������	�
� �&�������	�
���	�
� ��������!����/
	
�"
����!�	�
� ���"����1���(��&�� ���!���&!
����	�
�
� ��!��&��	�
� ����"��
�������&���)�� �����!
� *��
��

��&���	�����
�
����
����
���
�
9���&!��&��(����	��
� �����!�	�
� ��������	
������
����		����������������
�
���

���!�	�
� ���1�!�����!�������&���������
����!
��
����
���������� ��	������������
�
���
� �
���!
�������
 �'��	�����


7�6��8���������6�'
��1������
���!�?���������
���
������'
����
 !�������!������������!����!����
 !����!����������
������������	�(�
��!���������
�
9������������ �'��	�����1����(�����!��&����
������:�
�
� ��
�
9�������
 �
���������(��������	�
� �� 
��������!��
�� ���&
�!��!����:�
�	����
����!���&!��&��(��������������� �
���	�
� ������
	�����
 ���!�����
����		���� 
�����
������	���1��	
�����!��������!������
� �
��������	�
� �

������&����	���������(����
� �����
����		������
���!����������
� �������������� 
���
� �������(�����
	�
1���
���!������$�����
���&���)
�� ��*������
��&����!��
 !���!
� ���������1���(���!��������������������
� ��!��&
�:�
�	���������
��'
�������!�@
 !�!��	��	�������!������
���
����







������

�����	������ !!
������	���*


����#�$�


��		
��
�������&����(������	�'��������� ����<�	�����0��A��B��������


��		
��
����1�� ���	�'����������'��������� ����<�	���8���/����
� ��������� ����<�	�����0��A��B����
������		
��
����1������������!�	��
�����7���
�����
��������&����+!�	��
�������������
	����"�


�� �����6����
����9
��:��
�����������;����5����;��
���������5����		������������5�
��5�
�:���	������	�5���;)���������	�����9
#:���	������8���;�������������������
���<!�! =�>>�
�����(�������������/.���
�����/���5���:��
�������������
+�����5	����?������;
�5�
�	�����

����
	�����������������5������


*� �����6����
����9
����		���������������6������
�����	�������������@�
�	���
����5����
���
����	���������@���
����5���
���/��������A���* �� !!�


��		
��
�������&����(������������������
����������	�������� ����>���	�������������������(����&�
����������	��8�"8�����	������
����1���
��!����
����!������"$�����8
����������� ������
����'��
	
��� ���	�������)����
� ����������� �*������!���(��
��!
������'��
����&��������������
������#
����
6
������+��
� 4��1�&���� ���
�� �!��� �!������"$�� ���8
������������� ��������������
� ���� 
��
'
����
	���"�����
� �������������	�'
� ��!	���


��		
��
�������&��������!���)�����
���*�&�������C������� ��������
��!�&������������������!��

������������	"��������1�&��������
�
���!�����		
��
�������&��&�������
� �����!�#
��#���������!�
��
���������!����!���������������&���������� ���	��
� ��!���������	����������!�������
�����
� �
��
�����
��������
����&����������� ������		
��
�������&����
��!������������!��������&!���!���������
��		
��
�������������� ��������	����	������
�(����
���������1�&�������
���!��������
����������&�
!
 !�����������
��
����
�
�"����������&�������!��
�
� ��������� ����
�����!
��#
����
���-��
������"�1������
����� �!� �
�
� �������&�� �!� ������ �!�#
���
��� �.���&��� ��
������
�� 
�� �!�"���� �6
�����
��
�����&��


��		
��
�������&������'���!��&��	��"����>�����!���&���
� ��:���������������������!�����
��	����>����!�����
�
����� ���������!���!�������������� ����1���(���!��� 
����	��
���������
� 
���>���������'
��� ��� �!����������
� � 
������������� ���
�����
����� �����1����������
�� �!��������"
��	
�
��������4��(�5��(��!��������"��
��������������&��(������������!��������>����������!���������&����
�������!�
����	��
�������!����������
� ��!�����	
� ���� ���
�����
����
���������� ������!���
���
��
���	��!�������������5��(��������!���	��������!����>������������'�����'��/���
������	��
� 
	��������!����>�����
��������������	��!����&������ ��������!	�����		
��
�������&����(�������!
�

����	��
�����������'
�������!�����������������!�
����	��
�����������(��
���������	�������&���


��		
��
�������&��	�'�� ��������'��������� ���� <�	���� ���		
��
����������"�������� �!
	��
�����7������!���
�����
��������&����+!�	��
�������������
	����"��������"�����!��:�����
���
�
����
)�����!	����;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����







������

�����	������ !!
������	���B


B� ���
�����������
����9
����		����������������;���6�)/�������;�����	
��,�
��������	���
�
����;�����5��������$���
������������������������	����


��		
��
�������&����
��%�������� 	���!����� ����������
��������!�&������������!����!���	���"
&����
� � 
'�� �&��"�"������� ���8��	��
�
'���'
��&
�!�#�"��������"������ �!��� �!
��&�������!�
/�	��� ��� �!� �����"� ���� �
��
� � ���� 
��� &��(� ���� ��'
��� 1� �!�� !�� �!��� 
�� �!� ������� ����	
�
�'
���	�����!������"�&��������
���"��
��
� �����
�������������������!���!�!��������������	�&
�!��!
���"�
���&��(��
� ��&�����&
�!�������
��
����������'����������


��		
��
����1�������
���!���#�"��������"�/��
����	��"������	��&
�!�%�������� 	��$�
���������������!�������'���"���!������"�!�������/��
������"������	��&
�!�%�������� 	���
��		
��
���� 1�� ���	��
���� �!���%�������� 	��� 
�� ���'
�
� � ���
�
����� &����
��� ���� �� �
�8
�������
��� ���
�(��� �"��	� ��� �!� +������� ����
���� ��������� ��� �!� ��������� ����� ����
����
����
��		
��
�������&���������!����!��&��	��"���	���
��
���!�&����
������
���
��������#�"��
�����"��!��������������
������������!����	������!��"�������'
���!������"���������
	����������
�

���!�����'
��
���������'
�����6
�����
��������&��


�����"���	
�
��������4��(�5��(��
����	���!��������!����!�����������
�������!�+�����������
����&!
�!
&�����	� ���"����
���!��������"������	����������!���%�������� 	���!���������
 �
�
������������
���� 
��� ����������
���� � 1� ����� 
����	�� �!� ������ �!���%���� ���� 	��� !��� ��:�
��� ��� ��� �!
�
��	��
����$����
�
�
������������#
��������������
��.����������!��&����!������
���������������
����'��
�!���	���8����������!�����:�
�
�
��8��!��� !����
�
������
��
� ���� �������!��� !��!������"$�
���
�
�"���1�������!
���	��(����"
� �������	����!
�����		����
����������!���&�����	����
������

���!���
 
����� �	���&
�!�%�������� 	���


��		
��
����1�� ���	�'����������'��������� ����<�	�0�����		
��
����1������������!�	��
���
7������!���
�����
��������&����+!�	��
���������08��&
�!���		
��
�������&��'��
� �
�������
�
����������"
����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	���0;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����


=� �����6�� �� �5�,������		�����9
 ����		�������� �5�����������
������� %��� �� ���5���(�� ��
��������������-����������������;���
���
������������
C�����
���������
�����6��������5�
����������������3�-���%���
5�


��		
��
�������&����
��!
����������&
�!��!
���:����&���
	
��������!���/�����������!�� �	��
&
�!�%�������� 	�����1���(��
���!�	��"��������
�������������������
� �&������
�
�����	��"����
�

��&�������������!�����������"��������������!����������
������3�(���<����!���%�����"��	�6
������+��"
�����������&����!������������!�	��"�!��������"������������
�����!�3�(���<����!����>��������!���!�
�����&���������
�
��������������		
��
�������&��	�!��
9���!����!������	�!�!���&����!�&��(�&����
�������	�������!������"��!���&��������
�����������
��&��������!����������!���!�!��������������	�'��
� 

����'�������!�%������		
��$�����		����
�����


��		
��
����1������
���������!����!������"�
���������
 ��������
������������
�������'
�����!���������
�������
� �!���&��(������#�"��������"������'���&��"�"�������!����!��
�	�)������ ����>��*�������!������
�!��������������'��	�
����������
����
�����1�����
�����!����!
���:������'��
���&
�!��!�������$�
�� �
� �&��(����3�(���<����!�������!���
��	��� �������
�����������	���"���	���&!��(��&���!�







������

�����	������ !!
������	���=


���>�������&!���!������"�
��
����	�������	���
� ��!����������
�������!���(�����		
��
����1�� ��
������!����!
�����		����
���&������	��!�%������		
����������������		
�����!
����'
���!������
��(��
��������
����
�����


��		
��
����1�� ���	�'����������'��������� ����<�	�A�����		
��
����1������������!�	��
���
6
�����
��������&����+!�	��
����������8��&
�!���		
��
�������&��������		
��
����������"�'��
� �
�
�����
�
����������"�����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	���A;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��
�����!����


D� �����6����
����9
����		�������������5���(�'�����5,�����	
���%�����������"�;,���������
�����	�E*��3�-�8����������
���<�=�D=*�  �


��		
��
�������&������'���!����!
���:����&����
�����������&��������,�����!�%
��
�	������1��!�� !�

��&���������������!���,�����!�%
��
�	����!��������������!������"�������!�����	������	��&
�!��!�	����
&��/���������	��!���'
�����
���:������1���
���!���!����
'���
��������!����
��&��(�&�������
����!��!�� !���!
��&������
�������&!���!�&��(��!���������
�������!�����������������	�������!���1
��
���������!����!��������
� �����	����
�������!
���:����
��
������!������������	��
 �
�
���������
&
�!�)���(
� ���&���!�	����*����
'�"��������!���:�
�	���������!�������!���!�&�����
����	��
��
���'
������!
	��!���&�����'�
�"��!��������
�����1���
��!�&������	�
��'�"��(��
����
���!��������������!
�����
���&����������'
���


��		
��
����1�� ���	�'����������'��������� ����<�	�B�����		
��
����1������������!�	��
���
+!�	��
����������8��&
�!���		
��
�������&��������		
��
����������"�'��
� �
�������
�
����������"
����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	���B;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����


�� �����6����
����9
����		�����������F�����5�	����2��E�!>�����������������;��6�	���5
���
�5�����	�����
�5�������;)������
����5�	����
�
���/�5�.�/���������/,�����/
��	���;����
�����	����


��		
��
�������&����
���!������	�&
�!��!
���:����&����!���
��&�������!��/�	��������������
���!����!
�����"�
��)����
��
� �������!�������!
��
�����&�����	"*���1�����
�����!��������������(
� �����&��(���!"
�����"
� ���������!
����������������
��&�������
	���������
�"������!������"������
���!���"�������:����

���������� ���������
�
� ���1���������"
� �
���!������"��������� 
'���	��
�������������
�
������
����!�
�!������"������'������"�(��&�
��
��
�� ��
� ��!�������
�
� ��'�
�����


��		
��
����1�� ���	�'����������'��������� ����<�	�������		
��
����1������������!�	��
���
+!�	��
����������8��&
�!���		
��
�������&��������		
��
����������"�'��
� �
�������
�
����������"
����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	����;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����


>� �����6����
����9
����		�����������;����5�	����2��E�G!�����;��6�	���5
���������	�����

;5�;�����;)������
����5�	����
�
���/�5�,�����/
��	���;���������	��������/���5�
��:��
�������������
+�����5	���>?������;
�5�
�	�����
����
	�����������������5������


G� �����6�����5�,������		�����9
����		������������
����������	���������/��������
��	��
9
;��������
�����	����5�	������	����5����
���5�$�����"�����������	�����/���5���:��
��
�����������
+�����5	���G?������;
�5�
�	�����
����
	�����������������5������







������

�����	������ !!
������	���D


! � �����6�����5�,������		�����9
����		�������������	������5���	������	��1����
��������
���;���.�/���������/�������5�������/��5�����	��
�5����/9
7�6�$��	���������3�-�4�����
���3�-�8����������/���5���:��
�������������
+�����5	���! ?������;
�5�
�	�����
����

	�����������������5������


!!� �����6�����5�����
�!>�� !!��������������������������
�


�3721�%�#���


!�� �����6����
����9
��:��
�������5���(�����������5�
���
-�����	�����
�������
�����������
�

�������5����������$��5�����/����9
��	�����"������	�����5������;��5
�������5�
�
����	�
���	'������9
�������������
������58�;�������-������7����������
������	����������F����
<!�!� G �


<����	��
����"��	��6
������.��������
��� �	
���� �!������� �!��� 
�� ������
�� �D�� ����� 
�� ������� �!
����� 
��+�!���� "�����������������������!��������!�<����	��
����"��	��6����	����'��������
'8"��
��	����������	�����!������1�/���
����!������������!���!������0����(������	��������0�������
��	�����������B����
������������������!������1��������!����!���	������&�����������!�������	
6���������!���
�����&�����������!�������	�1&�������(������1�/���
����!������!���	���
��!�������
�����������	��
� ��!�����!��
� ���������	���!���	���"�&�����������1�������!����!������������!
��	������������
�����&������
����'����&(�����
����!����!�	��������������
����
���&������
"��$��	�����������!���&
�!���������
��������
	
��������
���!��'�
���
�
�"��������!������	��!�������
���������
	
�����1���(���������!��
9��
����������!����!���	���������������������
�������������
	��	��
�!������	�����!������6
�����
��������&��������
� ��!���
����$�	�������!
���
��������!��'�
���
�
�"
��������	����������!�&���� ��!������	����������&�������(������&������������������������&!��
�����	����&����� ���!��
���������	����


��		
��
�������&��	�'�� ��������'������$�� �:���� �������!��
9��
��� �������!�����(������	������
���������������
�����������������!������ 
��+�!���� "�����$����	�����.����	�����!�����&
�!���
�
����!���������	����	�,�� 
�$������������������������!�1&�������(��������6�������������
������	����
�������/���E�����F������		
��
����������"���������!�	��
�����7���
�����
��������&����+!�	��
��
����������
	����"��������"�����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	�����;�������&���!��	
���������
��	��
������
�
��������!����


�#,21�%�#���


!*� ���
�����������
����9
��:��
���������������5�;���������;��5���������5�.�/���������/���-

���"�������������
�

�

	����


����6���"��1
�(���2
�8�!�
�	��� ��� �!�.����
�����		
��
���� 
����	�� �!������� �!��� �!�.����
��
��		
��
���!������!������
���&!��
����������'
�
���!�7��������	�����1��	
�����!��������!��
�!�7��������	���&����
����������
�������������!���
��!�������
 !��������
�����D���1�������!��������!��
�!�.����
�����		
��
�����
'���!�7��������	���	�������(�����!���������#�"��������"�����
&!���������!���
��������&�����
�����������!�	��
�
���
�
�����&��������
�����������#�"��������"���1
����
�����!����!�.����
�����		
��
�����
'���!������������!��������	��
�!��!�7��������	��
&���������(��!��'�����&��(�
������� �������!����������!�����!��!�������	�����
����������
���!�&��(

����	������1�/���
�����!�����!��!����
�� �����������!�����
������
�����������!���������������
� 







������

�����	������ !!
������	����


�!����������1
�(����
���!
��&����!���������������
�"����� � ����
�	�������������������"8&
�����'"��"
��(
� ��
�
9���:���
���������������
��������������!�	�!��
9���!
���!���&�����������:�
�� �!
�������
�����������
�
���
�������!����������������"���������1���������!��������!����'"�&�����	�����
!�&���������������!��������������'
��
����
��
� ����1���(������������������E�����������������
� ��!
���'"������!�������!���&!
��
��
���������������!�.����
�����		
��
����!���#�"��������"�
�����
� ���� !
����	
���
	���
��#�"��������"��
�������������
��������
�����������&��
��������/��
��� �������� 8
��	�������
���!�������


�����"���	
�
��������4��(�5��(���	
�����!��������!����!
�����������	��!�.����
�����		
��
���&��
�������!������$���:����
�����F���������������
��
��7��������	����!������ �
9���!��!�'���
��������
'��!�� ���'���!������
 !������
��"�����
����!��
����7��������	���������&���������


��		
��
����1�� ����!�� !������1
�(��)!
���!���
������!�!��*��"�
�����
� ��������#�"��������"���������
>����
��
'
������
�
����������!������"�&������
�
� ���	����
��������
�����������
����1��!�� !���!
�
�������!�&���������������#�"��������"����


��		
��
�������&����
��!�)��'��
��)�&!������1
�(����
���!���
�������"��!�����������
���������!
!�����!�7��������	���&�������� >���� �!���� �1�����
�����!����������!
����
����'�"�!
� ��������
�����
���������
��#�"��������"�&�������������!������7��������	��������!����!������7��
�����	���&������)����
���"����&������	��*���1�����������!��� �����D��������
�����&!���!
��
 
����7��������	���&����
������������!����� �!��� �!����������� �!��� �
	� ����� �!���������
��		
��
����� �!��� �!� �
�"� ��� ���!��� �
�"� ���� �!� +�&�� ��� +"���� !��� ��� )�
�������*� ��� ���
����
���������!�7��������	��������		
��
�������&����		�����!������C�����!��
�
9������#�"��
�����"������/�����������
��������������!����������������:�
����"��
���
������!��� !����#�"��
�����"���1�	�!��
9���!���
����������		
��
����������
����
������'��������!������������
�����"
���������!��������B�C�����!��
�
9���&!
����/
� ����C�����!��
�
9��������!�&������������!����!
�
�&�����"�&�����������������!������7��������	���������1
�(�����
���!���!������!�.����
��
��		
��
���&���!�
� ���		
��
�������&�$����������������!����!
���&�7��������	���&��������(
����!��'�������������!������"��&���������/�������"��������&�����
������'�"���


��		
��
����1�������������1
�(���!���!��!�� !���!��&������!
� �	���
	�������������!��
�
9������#�"��
�����"��!����� ���������
��������������!���!�&����
�����
����&
�!��!������7��������	����
����!
!�������	��"�����!��������
��#�"��������"��
�����
� ��������������������������� 
���$����������������!���
&������ ��������� ���� 
������1�&����
�����
���������� �!� ����� ����"�����
���"� 
 ����� �!����
��������
��#�"��������"������&!
��
��	�"�!�'������������
������������
���
����������"� ����&����
#�"��������"$������� �1������������ ���!�.����
�����		
��
���������(����
	���'
� �������
���

���	�����"��
������������������������������!�
	���'	�������������
��������
	��	����!��
��
����"�
����1
�(�����
���!����!�.����
�����		
��
�����
'���!�
��������'�"���
��
	��������������!����!
�������
	���� ��
����	��
��������
���
���
���
 !����&���1���
��&!
���!�����"��������������������
��&����
���
 !���
���
��&������ � �'�"���
���!��������������!���&!���!�.����
�����		
��
���������
����!��������!��!�� !������'�"���"�����
���&�������
�������


��		
��
�������&����(��
������"�����
����
����&����������������!������������1
�(�����
���!�������"�
�
��&�"�����������!�:���
�����!���.����
���6
��������
���,��������!�����������������"��!
�(��������
�����
�����
�������'����
��������������(���!
���������������!���
��
���!��!
����
��
�"���1�������!�&'����!��
&�������!��/�	����!���
���!�����������������!
�(�������
�������
���!��
���
����
����	��
������'
����!�
�
	
��������������������	
�����







������

�����	������ !!
������	���>


��		
��
����1����	�'��������!��
9�/���
�����������E���������	�/
��
� ��<��������������A������ 
�
�!���-�����#�"��������"$�����(������.����
���7��������	�������		
��
����1�� ���������
�!�	��
�����+!�	��
�������������
	����"��������"�����!��:�����
���
�
�����)�����!	�����;�������&�
�!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����


!B� ���2�����8����������
���������#����5�.�/���������/7�6����	������5����/�;������6����
/���)������������5����5����/9
.�
���H���� !!�


�����������1��������������!��������������!���8 �
� �&��(�����!�#�"��������"�6'���	������!��
�"�
1�
����	���!��������!���!������!����!��
�"�!���������
�����
� ��!�������&��	���!���!���
��!�����

���!���'
�����&�'�	���!����1��!��������!��������������&���&���	���
���!���� ��������
����
�
#�"��������"�&
�!
���!������"���������!���!�	��&
�!��'���&��"8�!����	���
����������!������"$�

������
������(���1���
���!���!�
�������� ��!��
� ������"���"����������
��������!���	���"���������!����!"
������(
� ����!
���&�	���"����1����(��������!�	��"��	
���������
�
� ���������
�
���
�
�
��
'������
��!���
	
������������
�
���!���!�!���� � ��
����������"������!����!����!��
�"�!��������������1������
!
���������
����"����(
� �����!�����������!����!��
�"�
��&��(
� �&
�!�����!�&��!"������������
���"������
#�"��������"$������	"��6
�����
��������&��


+!����������(�������
������� �'�����
���
���������
� ��!
���:�����������"�����!��:�����
���
�
����
)�����!	�����;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!������


!=� ���
��������������:��
����	��		�

�����2��;�����
��

�5������/9
I���������������

��������
��������;������������
�


�!�
�	���#���"��	
�����!�������
��&��������������������������&!���&�����
���
�����!��
� �&��
��(
� ������������
� ��!
�����
��������!����!�!��
� �&�����������������������
�����	����F���������1
��  �����!���
���!�������&��������!�'��!������
� �����=��
� �6����	�������'
&��!����
��������
���(����
��������!�����
�������:�
�	�������	��
�"��
	
�����!���!���&��������������
���


��		
��
�������&��������������'�������������������!�!���&
�!��!������"$��=��
� �-��
��������
�
������ ��� ���� ��&�� � ����
����� �
������� ��� ��!���� !
�� ��������� ������(�� ���� �!������$�� ������
���!��
9
� �����������'
&���!�������������
�
����"���!�����������
����"���		
��
�������&��&����G
�!�����
���
����������
�����
�������������	
��&!���	�(������	��������
���
��H��G��!�����
�
�
�"���
�����
� � �!������'�������������(�����!������������		
��
����� 
����� 
��������� ��'
� ��!������'��
������� ��� ��������"� �����H� �G� �� ���'
�
��� 
�� �!� ���
����� �!��� ������ � �
������ �:�
�	���� ��&�
	��
�
����������������
 !���
� ������"�������H�����0G������'
�
���
���!����
������!���&�����	�������
� 
�
	������
�
���
���������������!��������!���������������&���
���6
�����
��������&��


6
�����������		��
�"�6'���	������#�
�
������
��"����(��������!�/
��
� ��
�������:�
�	����
���!
������&�����
����������!���  �����!��������������� ������!������
� ���		
��
����!������&
� �&(���
)������
������������!	*�����������
� �����!�-�����������%��(�!����


+!��������
�����������������������!������
� ���		
��
����������!�
���������
�����������������������
�!� -������ A�� ����� %��(�!��� ��
� � &
�!� ���		����
����� � �� ���"� ��� �!� �:����� 
���
�
�� ��
)�����!	����0;�������&���!��	
���������
��	���������
�
��������!����







������

�����	������ !!
������	���G


�7�%�%�$"�$�"9�"#��"$�


���6�,������9
"�
�����������	�5�.�/���������/8�
��������5����/�������"���	
�
��������4��(�5��(�

����	���!��������!���������'�%
�������		�������!��
�	����#�"���1���
�������!��
�"��!�����
 ������	
�!�1���
�������!��
�"�������������
����������#�"��������"��1�
����	���!�������
��&���������������
�����	��
����
����!��&�'�����"���1������/���
����!����!����!��
�"�&��������
�!���"��!�������������
���&
�!��!�
������
��� ��/8/	��������� ���� �!� ���������
��� ����
�	����#�"�����		��
�"�1���
����� �1���(�� �!������� ��� 
'
����
����
��������!�� !��������	�������
����!�'�����"������"�����%
���$����
 ���
���


��		
��
�������&����(��
���!��������
�
�������������'��
����!��� !�������������������5��(�����
���!��

��&����!������$���
����
���������
� �!�&��!"�&���������
����!����
�
�����1�������!�����'
��������
��	������
�!����!��
�"�!�'�������
������"���	��'����� ��	
�
��
�"�&
�!�
�!��!���
���������
������� �!�	�
���� �
���
��		
��
�������&����
��!�&���������	
�������
� ��!����:�
�	����
���!���'��
�	�����+!���������������
&�������'
�
���!�
��������!����	�����������������������		
��
�����	�
� �
���������� 
'���!���		
��
���
�
	��������
���&!��������������������


J���)�5���	�� 8����� ��������� �
 J����� 7������� ��� .�/���� �����/ �� ���' ������������ � �����"
��	
�
��������4��(�5��(��
����	���!��������!������-�������80��������!�3 
����
'�3����!
��������������!
�����
��
�����������"���		
��
�����,�� 
�� I���,G�&����������� 
��������������� �!���	��"���� �!�������&�
�����
� �����������!������������	����!�����������������
�
� �������
'����1�����
�����!�����������"�
-�������������������	����!�-��
�
�������������!����
�������
�������!����,�&�������������1���
���!����!����,
�������"��:������!���'�"������"�
���
�"��������
����2��
� �6� ��������!����
�������
����!���������'�����
�!��������!������"�&
�!�������������
�
�������������������!��	��������1�
����	���!��������!����!�������
�����!����	
���������!�2��
� �6� ���
�������"�����	����F���������


�!�
�	���#���"���  �����!���2
�8�!�
�	���1�� ���������
��!
��������������!�2��
� �6� �����+!������$�
���������&����������
���2
�8�!�
�	���1�� ���������!�2��
� �6� ����


%�������������$;���;������,��-
#	���/��
������
��%��(��6
�������!
���������
������������������"�5�
� �
&!����'������!����
������6
����������!�.����6����	���������������!��"������"�&!����'������!������"$�
��
	��"�.
 !�8��8%�"�� ����


����%��%��#"�"#��"$�


��		�

�����2��;�����		
��
�������&��	��
�����!���
��&��� �����������		
��
����������"����(����
!���!"����	��!��������� �"������!�&����������!����!���� �"�&���&�����







������

�����	������ !!
������	���! 


�7A�1"��#�$


��		
��
����1����	�'�� �����>����� �!����	������ �����%��(�!�����
� �� ���		
��
�����1�� ������
������"���������!�	��
����+!�	��
�������������
	����"�


+!�#�"��������"������������		
��
�������>�������!
�����	�����������%��(�!�����
� ����A��A���	�


JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�������������������������������JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ
�����.��/�3�A���
��5���7����/����- 8������#�.���/��5���	��


+!���� �
� �	
�����&�����"������'�����������
�
���	�
� �����!������������		
��
��������#�"��������"�
,�� 
���!�������!��������"�������	���������


JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ�
.��/�3�A���
��5���7����/����-









